
 
 
 

 
 

Regular 
Board Meeting 

 

Board Room 
 

June 23, 2025 



 
Fruitport Community Schools 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

Board Room  
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd, Fruitport 49415 
Monday, June 23, 2025 - 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

I. CALL to ORDER 
 

II. PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE 
 

III. ROLL CALL 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

a. Property Tax Petition: Stellar Hospitality Muskegon, LLC 
 
VII. SUPERINTENDENT/ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
VIII. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC* 

 
IX. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of Bill Listing (attachment IX-1) 
 
Fund Amount 
General Fund: $626,697.85 

 
Other Funds:  
Early Childhood Center $143.07 
Food Service 
Cooperative Education (ISD) – Tech Millage 

$220,634.08 
$155,403.44 

Capital Projects Fund (2021) $20,950.00 
Credit Cards (All Funds) $115,951.32 
Total Bill List: $1,139,779.76 

 
2. Acceptance of May 2025 General Fund Financial Report (attachment IX-2) 
3. Acceptance of May 2025 Investments Report (attachment IX-3) 
4. Approval of Personnel Report (includes confirmation of new hires, resignations, retirees, and 

transfers) (attachment IX-4) 
5. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes from June 9, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. (attachment IX-5) 

 
X. GENERAL BOARD BUSINESS 

1.  2025-2026 MHSAA Membership Resolution (attachment X-1) 
2.  2025-2026 MASB Membership Dues (attachment X-2) 
3.  Emergency Operations Plan (attachment X-3) 
4.  November 2025 Bond Proposal  
 

XI. BUSINESS & FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
JB Meeuwenberg, Chairperson 

1. Report of Committee Meeting held June 16, 2025 (attachment XI-1) 



2. General Fund Budget Amendment for 2024-2025 (attachment XI-2) 
3. School Service Fund Budget Amendment for 2024-2025 (attachment XI-3) 
4. Budget Appropriations Act of the 2025-2026 General Fund (attachment XI-4) 
5. Budget Appropriations Act of the 2025-2026 School Service Fund (attachment XI-5) 
6. WMHIP Board Member Resolution (attachment XI-6) 
7. Food Service Management Company Renewal Approval (attachment XI-7)  
 

XII. PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
 Steve Kelly, Chairperson 

1. Report of Committee Meeting held June 16, 2025 (attachment XII-1) 
2. Non-Affiliated Support Wage and Benefit Schedule (attachment XII-2) 
3. Non-Affiliated Administrator Wage and Benefit Schedule (attachment XII-3) 

 
XIII. STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

Tim Burgess, Chairperson 
1. Report of Committee Meeting held June 16, 2025 (attachment XIII-1) 
2. Overnight Field Trip Request: Trojan Travelers – New York, NY (attachment XIII-2) 
3. Appointments to Rycenga Recreational Park Board (attachment XIII-3) 
4. 2025-2026 MS/HS Athletic Handbook (attachment XIII-4) 
5. SEPAC Parent Advisory Committee Appointment – Stephanie Detamore (attachment XIII-5) 

 
XIV. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

XV. AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Board will need to confirm the following tentative dates and times: 
  

1.  Business & Finance Committee Meeting: July 14, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. 
2.  Personnel Committee Meeting: July 14, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. 
3.  Student Affairs Committee Meeting: July 14, 2025 at 4:30 p.m. 
4.  Board of Education Regular Meeting: July 21, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

XVI. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC* 
XVII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
*Time is provided for members of the audience to address the Board of Education regarding any topic including 
items on the agenda. The Board is providing two opportunities for the public to comment during the meeting.  The 
first is for people who wish to bring issues to the Board of Education for board consideration. At the end of the 
meeting, the Board will provide a brief opportunity for community members to comment on activities and/or 
discussion that took place during the Board meeting. Time limits may be placed if a large number of individuals 
would like to address the Board. 
Note: Upon request to the Superintendent, the District shall make reasonable accommodation for a person with 
disabilities to be able to participate in this meeting. 











 AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda      
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date:  June 23, 2025 

 
To: Board of Education             Attachments # IX-1 through IX-5 
    
From: Jason Kennedy 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 

• Bill Listing 
• May 2025 General Fund Report 
• May 2025 Investments Report 
• Personnel Report 
• Approval of Special Meeting Minutes from June 9, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

 
Background Information:   
See attached 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact:   
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:   
Approval of the Consent Agenda, as presented. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Burgess             ___ Cole     ___ Hazekamp               ___ Kelly 
 

 ___ Meeuwenberg      ___ Mueller          ___ Six 
 
 

 



AMOUNT

GENERAL	FUND $626,697.85

EARLY	CHILDHOOD	CENTER $143.07

FOOD	SERVICE $220,634.08

COOPERATIVE	EDUC	(ISD)	-	TECH	MILLAGE  $155,403.44

	
CAPITAL	PROJECTS	(BOND)2021 $20,950.00

CREDIT	CARDS $115,951.32
(ALL	FUNDS)

GRAND TOTAL  $1,139,779.76

FRUITPORT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
BILL LIST

 Month of May 2025

FUND



	2025	ORIGINAL	
BUDGET	

	2025	
AMENDED	
BUDGET	

	2025	YTD	
ACTUAL	

	MAY	MTD	
FY25	

	%	YTD	
SPENT	

	2024	YTD	
ACTUAL	

Revenues:
100 LOCAL 3,986,559.00				 4,417,009.00				 4,522,456.60				 -																					 102.39% 4,525,220.72				
300 STATE 30,531,376.00		 31,280,857.00		 23,933,980.88	 -																					 76.51% 32,141,457.37		
400 FEDERAL 2,254,845.00				 2,483,591.00				 1,271,248.34				 -																					 51.19% 4,165,108.39				
500 TRANSFERS 1,621,283.00				 1,946,962.00				 693,042.47							 -																					 35.60% 1,814,526.38				

TOTAL 38,394,063.00		 40,128,419.00		 30,420,728.29	 -																					 75.81% 42,646,312.86		

Expenses:
111 ELEMENTARY (6,459,300.00)			 (7,000,954.00)			 (5,060,154.95)		 (495,774.23)					 72.28% (6,628,979.05)			

112 MIDDLE	SCHOOL/JUNIOR	HIGH (3,399,564.00)			 (3,557,021.00)			 (2,510,822.98)		 (237,350.72)					 70.59% (3,342,477.12)			
113 HIGH	SCHOOL (4,937,084.00)			 (5,025,756.00)			 (3,615,625.11)		 (357,308.81)					 71.94% (4,882,023.05)			
122 SPECIAL	EDUCATION (5,581,430.00)			 (5,625,070.00)			 (4,023,017.25)		 (408,363.25)					 71.52% (5,190,619.12)			
125 COMPENSATORY	EDUCATION (1,179,017.00)			 (1,414,665.00)			 (948,059.08)						 (69,164.62)							 67.02% (1,306,919.86)			
127 VOCATIONAL	EDUCATION (160,323.00)						 (169,800.00)						 (113,005.79)						 (11,374.59)							 66.55% (175,641.27)						
131 BASIC	ADULT/CONTINUING	ED (16,494.00)									 (14,547.00)									 (28,882.00)								 (28,707.00)							 198.54% (17,275.19)									
132 SECONDARY	ADLT/CONTINUING	EDUC (148,287.00)						 (158,433.00)						 (169,742.39)						 (13,265.75)							 107.14% (138,228.24)						
211 TRUANCY/ABSENTEEISM	SERVICES -																						 (5,302.00)											 (5,302.47)										 -																					 100.01% (5,000.00)											
212 GUIDANCE	SERVICES (507,976.00)						 (532,683.00)						 (423,807.53)						 (41,309.31)							 79.56% (480,291.92)						
213 HEALTH	SERVICES (834,957.00)						 (857,918.00)						 (674,385.64)						 (67,933.90)							 78.61% (715,911.85)						
214 PSYCHOLOGICAL	SERVICES (358,865.00)						 (384,465.00)						 (291,815.22)						 (32,561.61)							 75.90% (409,836.78)						
215 SPEECH	PATHOLOGY/AUDIOLOG	SERV (950,975.00)						 (1,199,390.00)			 (874,631.17)						 (87,719.75)							 72.92% (884,438.60)						
216 SOCIAL	WORK	SERVICES (726,508.00)						 (748,136.00)						 (572,527.78)						 (63,181.51)							 76.53% (698,603.07)						
218 TEACHER	CONSULTANT -																						 -																						 (343.04)														 -																					 100.00% (385.92)														
219 OTHER	PUPIL	SUPPORT	SERVICES (775,473.00)						 (817,932.00)						 (710,959.29)						 (90,428.12)							 86.92% (734,571.16)						
221 IMPROVEMENT	OF	INSTRUCTION (443,433.00)						 (473,571.00)						 (429,870.64)						 (33,909.00)							 90.77% (383,452.14)						
222 EDUCATIONAL	MEDIA	SERVICES (230,997.00)						 (254,876.00)						 (203,877.38)						 (15,285.16)							 79.99% (249,951.16)						
225 TECHNOLOGY	ASSISTED	INSTRUCTED (12,650.00)									 (37,782.00)									 (35,156.50)								 -																					 93.05% (120,771.93)						
226 SUPERVIS/DIR	OF	INSTRUCT	STAFF (998,351.00)						 (1,059,955.00)			 (947,657.73)						 (45,895.44)							 89.41% (835,956.53)						
227 ACADEMIC	STUDENT	ASSESSMENT (31,819.00)									 (25,250.00)									 (18,657.26)								 -																					 73.89% (16,745.82)									
231 BOARD	OF	EDUCATION (67,344.00)									 (66,993.00)									 (52,132.64)								 (3,824.09)									 77.82% (49,451.70)									
232 EXECUTIVE	ADMINISTRATION (560,509.00)						 (581,515.00)						 (543,515.86)						 (45,593.69)							 93.47% (557,252.05)						
241 OFFICE	OF	THE	PRINCIPAL (2,100,740.00)			 (2,178,380.00)			 (1,727,218.35)		 (160,875.21)					 79.29% (2,072,447.16)			
249 OTHER	SCHOOL	ADMINISTRATION (1,600.00)											 (2,600.00)											 (5,990.82)										 -																					 230.42% (8,579.09)											
252 FISCAL	SERVICES (484,908.00)						 (555,691.00)						 (667,442.09)						 (66,416.39)							 120.11% (504,255.70)						
257 INTERNAL	SERVICES (34,209.00)									 (28,463.00)									 (12,619.67)								 (298.31)													 44.34% (23,163.99)									
259 OTHER	BUSINESS	SERVICES (105,807.00)						 (113,208.00)						 (60,894.64)								 -																					 53.79% (91,049.69)									
261 OPERATING	BUILDING	SERVICES (3,321,839.00)			 (3,653,757.00)			 (3,538,960.22)		 (477,021.66)					 96.86% (3,612,688.13)			
266 SECURITY	SERVICES (85,000.00)									 (85,000.00)									 (86,320.00)								 (86,320.00)							 101.55% (95,217.50)									
271 PUPIL	TRANSPORTATION	SERVICES (2,592,070.00)			 (2,605,911.00)			 (2,233,648.50)		 (222,024.03)					 85.71% (2,642,233.02)			
282 COMMUNICATION	SERVICES (17,800.00)									 (12,800.00)									 (6,969.90)										 -																					 54.45% (9,251.54)											
283 STAFF/PERSONNEL	SERVICES (22,950.00)									 (20,950.00)									 (24,958.32)								 -																					 119.13% (33,739.12)									
284 SUPPORT	SERVICES	TECHNOLOGY (491,107.00)						 (651,205.00)						 (656,729.44)						 (86,793.58)							 100.85% (664,717.13)						
285 PUPIL	ACCOUNTING (5,838.00)											 (5,438.00)											 (5,438.00)										 (5,438.00)									 100.00% (5,703.19)											
289 OTHER	CENTRAL	SERVICES (1,000.00)											 (1,000.00)											 -																					 -																					 0.00% (1,203.00)											
293 ATHLETIC	ACTIVITIES (803,466.00)						 (815,610.00)						 (752,642.16)						 (50,650.08)							 92.28% (783,501.61)						

299 OTHER	SUPPORT	SERVICES (13,815.00)									 (15,315.00)									 (3,661.36)										 -																					 23.91% (13,434.69)									
311 COMMUNITY	SERVICES	DIRECTION (69,820.00)									 (79,570.00)									 (56,500.81)								 (6,367.65)									 71.01% (99,562.95)									
331 COMMUNITY	ACTIVITIES (8,859.00)											 (3,800.00)											 (2,932.10)										 -																					 77.16% (1,263.78)											
371 NON-PUBIC	SCHOOL	PUPILS (22,326.00)									 (26,582.00)									 (14,650.07)								 (4,474.56)									 55.11% (28,986.69)									
411 PAYMENTS	TO	OTHER	PS	IN	MICH -																						 -																						 (2,394.28)										 -																					 100.00% (9,600.00)											
455 BLDG	ACQUIS	&	CONSTRUCT	SERV (4,680.00)											 -																						 -																					 -																					 100.00% (4,679.71)											
456 BUILDING	IMPROVEMENT	SERVICES -																						 -																						 -																					 -																					 100.00% (8,217.50)											
511 DEBT	SERVS-LONG	TERM-PRINCIPAL (40,416.00)									 (40,416.00)									 (40,416.72)								 -																					 100.00% (40,416.72)									
611 FUND	MODIFICATIONS	(GF) (55,962.00)									 (55,962.00)									 -																					 -																					 0.00% -																						
642 FUND	MODIFICATIONS	(B&S) (237,000.00)						 (187,000.00)						 -																					 -																					 0.00% (735,000.00)						

TOTAL (38,902,568.00)	 (41,150,672.00)	 ############# (3,315,630.02)		 78.14% (39,313,695.44)	

SURPLUS	(DEFECIT) (508,505.00)						 (1,022,253.00)			 (1,733,608.86)		 3,332,617.42				

FUND	BALANCE 8,192,388.00				 7,678,640.00				 6,967,284.14				 8,700,893.00				

																				MAY	2025	GENERAL	FUND	FINANCIAL	REPORT



Amount Interest	Rates
3,218,789.32$																																				 Variable

Amount Interest	Rates Maturity	Dates
4,525,000.00$																																				 4.24%	-	4.31% 7/25-11/25

Total	General	Fund	Investments 7,743,789.32$								

Amount Interest	Rates
284,983.39$																																							 Variable

Amount Interest	Rates Maturity	Dates
1,625,000.00$																																				 4.24%	-	4.31% 7/25-11/25

Total	Building	&	Site	Investments 1,909,983.39$								

Amount Interest	Rates
422,172.81$																																							 Variable

Amount Interest	Rates Maturity	Dates
-$																																																					 N/A N/A

Total	Building	&	Site	Investments 422,172.81$												

Amount Interest	Rates
622,365.75$																																							 Variable

Amount Interest	Rates Maturity	Dates
-$																																																					 N/A N/A

Total	Building	&	Site	Investments 622,365.75$												

Long	Term	Investments

Liquid	Investments

Long	Term	Investments

Liquid	Investments

														MAY	2025	INVESTMENTS

Bond

Trust	&	Agency

Building	&	Site

General	Fund
Liquid	Investments

Long	Term	Investments

Long	Term	Investments

Liquid	Investments



  Attachment IX-6 
 

Personnel Report – June 23, 2025 
 
It is recommended that the following candidates be offered contracts and/or salary 
increases pending final approval from the Board of Education: 
 

Emily Attenberger – ASD Instructional Assistant 
William Blevins – Bus Driver 
Cora Bradley – Spanish and ELL Teacher 
Jennifer Brems – High School Science Teacher 
Jacob McDougall – Middle School Science and ELA Teacher 
Emily McKellar – Certified Occupational Therapist Assistant 
Timothy Poe – Bus Driver 
Emelia Tombrella – Middle School ELA Teacher 
Cole Woodard – Operations, Receiving, and Grounds 
 

The following staff members will Resign/Retire/Reduce Hours/Transfer: 
  

• Veronica Constantine – Transfer from Shettler LRE Special Education 
Teacher to Shettler MICI Special Education Teacher 

• Christina Damm – Middle School Secretary / Clerical (Resignation) 
• Cameron Fielstra – Transferring from High School Graduation Advocate to 

High School Alternative Education Teacher 
• Hannah Firos – Middle School Special Education (Resignation) 
• Katie Houseman-Parker- Special Education Supervisor (Resignation) 
• Danielle VanderMeulen – Administrative Assistant (Resignation) 
• Wendy Wineland – Transfer from Beach Special Education LRE Teacher 

to Middle School LRE Special Education Teacher 
 

The following positions are currently posted: 
  

Edgewood Office Secretary / Clerical 
Educational Interpreter for Deaf and/or Hard of Hearing 
Food Service Dishwasher 
Freshman Volleyball Coach 
Instructional Assistant (4) – Edgewood ASD, Beach, Beach MOCI 
Classroom, Shettler 
JV Girls Basketball Coach 



  Attachment IX-6 
 

Long Term Substitute – Speech and Language Pathologist 
Middle School Spanish and ELL Teacher 
Premier Substitute Teacher 
School Bus Driver 
School Psychology Intern (Year 3) 
Special Education Supervisor 
Year Round Child Care Assistant 



 
Fruitport Community Schools 
Memo 
 

To:   FCS Board of Education      
From:  Katie Houseman-Parker  
Date: 6/17/2025    
CC:   Danielle VanderMeulen, Katie Shawl, Kristine Brower, Mark Mesbergen, Jason Kennedy 
Subject: Recommendation for Instructional Assistant Hire for ASD classroom 

 
 
It is with pleasure that I recommend the hiring of Emily Attenberger for the position of ASD 
Instructional Assistant at Edgewood Elementary.  Emily impressed the interview team consisting 
of Kathrine Houseman-Parker and Brittany Bordeaux. Her hourly pay will be $16.35  per hour at 
Step 2. 
 
She will begin her new position August 4th pending background check and the hiring process.  
 
 

Fruitport Community Schools, 3255 E. Pontaluna, Fruitport, MI 49415  
(231)865-4100 



 
Fruitport Community Schools 
Memo 
 

To:   FCS Board of Education      
From:  Katie Houseman and Steve Spinner 
Date: 6/10/2025     
CC:   Danielle VanderMeulen, Katie Shawl, Mark Mesbergen, Jason Kennedy 
Subject: Recommendation for COTA Hire 

 
 
It is with pleasure that we recommend the hiring of Emily Mckellar for the position of 
Occupational Therapist Assistant.  Emly impressed the interview team consisting of Kathrine 
Houseman-Parker,Steve Spinner, Ashley Rinzema, Sarah Gorski, Lauren Geldaker, and Mallory 
Rubley. Her hourly pay will be Step 7 at $29.30 per hour. 
 
She will begin her new position approximately on August 18th  pending background check and 
the hiring process.  
 
 

Fruitport Community Schools, 3255 E. Pontaluna, Fruitport, MI 49415  
(231)865-4100 



 

 Jennifer A. Brems 
jenniferbrems0@gmail.com 

 

Present Address 
357 Carnoustie S.E. 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 
United States 
1 - 616 - 540 - 4349 

Permanent Address 
357 Carnoustie S.E. 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 
United States 
1 - 616 - 540 - 4349 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

 
International School of Kuala Lumpur                   July 2010 - June 2024 
Courses taught:  IB Biology SL/HL, NGSS Integrated Science, IB Chemistry HL1/Honors Chemistry, 
Applied Biological and Physical Science 

● Collaborative planning and cross moderation with other teachers of the same subject 
● Collaborative planning and co-teaching with Learning Resource and ESL teachers 
● Co-lead of field research trips to Tioman Island for IB Biology students to conduct research for the IB 

Internal Assessment Research Investigation 
● Advisory teacher 
● IB Extended Essay Supervisor 
● IB CAS Project Supervisor 
● Global Action Program Trip Co-Leader 
● Member of interview committees for the hiring of administrators and teachers 

Curriculum Area Leader & Head of HS Science Department, 2011- June 2024 
● Oversee curriculum review, revision and supporting documentation for accreditation 
● Implementation and adaptation of EduChange Integrated Science curriculum (2014-2019) with 

transition to the development and implementation of NGSS starting 2019 
● Onboard new science teachers and continue to build a collegial, collaborative team 
● Setting, accomplishing and re-evaluating science department team goals 
● Assist with scheduling and course assignment to best utilize teacher talents and strengths 
● Develop and manage departmental budget 
● Supervision of 2 Science lab Technicians 
● K-12 science liaison with architect and construction firm in the design and construction of the science 

facilities for a new 2500 student campus 
● Facilitated the development of K-12 Science Lab Skill Progression 
● Facilitated the inventory of science equipment and materials with the publishing of the inventory for all 

science teachers to have knowledge of the school’s resources 
 
Nido de Aguilas, Santiago, Chile                    July 2007 - June 2010 
Courses taught:  IB Biology SL/HL, IB Chemistry SL 

● HS Scheduling Committee 
● High School Professional Learning Community 
● IB Biology Extended Essay Advisor 
● Week Without Walls Trip Co-Leader 

 
Escola Graduada do São Paulo (Graded School), São Paulo, Brazil               August 1999 to June 2007 
Courses taught:  Chemistry / IB Environmental Systems / Biology   

● Re-organized the storage of the HS Science department chemicals from an unsafe alphabetical order 
chemical storage to a safe method following the NSTA and Flinn Chemical Storage safety standards 

● Set up a HS Science Prep Room and equipment storage system 
● Leader of field research trips for IB Environmental Science students to conduct research for their IB 

Internal Assessment Research Investigation and for all IB Science students to conduct their Group 4 
Collaborative Sciences Project 

● IB Extended Essay Supervisor 
● Trip Co-leader for Week Without Walls / Brazilian Studies Trips 

mailto:jenniferbrems0@gmail.com


Fruitport Community Schools 
Beach Elementary  
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd 
Fruitport, MI 49415 

Dear Hiring Committee, 

I am writing to express my interest in the 4th-grade teaching 
position at Beach Elementary within the Fruitport Public School 
District. With seven years of experience in elementary 
education, primarily as a 1st-grade teacher and as a student 
teacher in 3rd grade, I am excited about the opportunity to 
bring my passion for teaching and my commitment to student 
growth to your school community. I will be relocating to the 
Norton Shores area in June 2025, and I am eager to begin my 
next chapter of teaching in Michigan. 

Throughout my career, I have had the privilege of working in a 
diverse school district, which has allowed me to refine my ability 
to connect with students from various backgrounds and create 
an inclusive, welcoming classroom environment. I am 
committed to helping my students meet high expectations by 
fostering problem-solving skills and promoting a growth mindset. 
I believe that building resilience and a love for learning in young 
students is the foundation for their future success. 

I currently hold a professional Michigan teaching certificate 
and am dedicated to continuing my professional development 

to best serve the students in my care. I am excited about the 
possibility of joining your dedicated team of educators and 
contributing to the positive and supportive school culture at 

Beach Elementary. 

Thank you for considering my application. I would be honored 
to discuss my qualifications further and learn more about how I 
can contribute to your school community. I look forward to the 
opportunity to meet with you. 

Sincerely, 

Jennifer Hayes 

JENNIFER 
HAYES 
K-8 Elementary 
Educator

CONTACT 

PHONE: 903-390-4603 

EMAIL: 
Jennmarie2882@gmail.com 

mailto:Jennmarie2882@gmail.com


JENNIFER 
HAYES 
K- 8 Certified Classroom Educator

PROFILE 
Dedicated and passionate 
elementary teacher with 7 years 
of experience teaching first grade, 
providing high-quality, hands-on 
instruction in a diverse classroom 
setting. Experienced in self-
contained teaching and 
committed to fostering strong 
literacy skills across all subject 
areas. I love creating an 
engaging, student-centered 
learning environment that 
promote curiosity and academic 
growth. I will be relocating to the 
Muskegon, Michigan area in June 
2025, excited to start my teaching 
career as a Michigan educator. 

CONTACT 
PHONE: 
903-390-4603

EMAIL: 
Jennmarie2882@gmail.com 

HOBBIES 
Photography 
Graphic Design 
Creating teaching resources aligned 
with state standards  

 References available upon request 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor's Degree in Science of Interdisciplinary Studies 
Texas A & M University-Commerce - Commerce, TX 
August 2016 – May 2018 

• Completed one year of student teaching
• Passed all certification exams
• Dean’s List Awarded 8 times for 3.8 GPA or higher
• Graduated Summa Cum Laude

Texas Reading Academies 
• 60 hours of continuing professional education credit in

the Science of Teaching Reading.

Certifications 
• Texas Exemplary Certified Teacher EC-6 with ESL

supplement

• Michigan Professional Teaching Certificate K-8
Elementary K-5 All Subjects (K-8 All Subjects in Self-
contained Classroom) (Zg) K-12 English as a Second
Language (Ns)

WORK EXPERIENCE 

Rice Independent School District- First Grade Classroom Teacher 
August 2018– Present (contract ends in May 2025) 

• Experience in writing lesson plans, setting up pacing
guides, and implementing high-quality instructional
materials including Saxon Phonics, i-Ready Math,
McGraw Hill Reading, and Science.

• Developed and implemented engaging lesson aligned
with state standards to promote student learning and
growth.

• Established clear behavior expectations and
implemented effective classroom management
techniques to maintain an orderly and productive
learning environment

mailto:Jennmarie2882@gmail.com


 

 

 • Collaborated with colleagues PLC meetings to address 
student’s success and targeted interventions.  

• Established relationships with my students and family to 
help foster a positive supportive learning environment  

• Regularly assess student progress through formative and 
summative assessments, providing timely feedback to 
students and parents/guardians. 

• Implemented interventions for struggling students based 
on data analysis to support their academic growth. 

• Served as a member of our school’s Sunshine 
Committee.  

SKILLS 

• Data analysis and targeted instruction 
• Classroom management  
• Lesson Planning and pacing  
• Collaborating in teams and committees  
• Communication skills  
• Technology skills  



August 13, 2024

To Whom it may concern,
I am writing regarding the open high school English teacher and assistant track coach

positions. It is my deepest desire to meet the needs of the students of Fruitport both in and
outside of the classroom.

My relevant qualifications include a teaching certification in English for Secondary
Education and am currently pursuing my Master’s in Literacy Studies with an emphasis in
TESOL. Currently, I am a part of the Instructional Leadership Team. Under my leadership, we
have implemented school-wide art integration projects in collaboration with West Michigan
Center for Arts + Technology and hosted annual art galas for student work. Within the English
and Social Studies Department, I have led a vertical alignment of grades 8-12 in writing and
grammar instruction. This included data-driven academic interventions targeting scholars’
greatest areas of need to see growth within their school work and on their standardized test.
Last year alone, both 9th and 10th grade PSAT Reading and Writing scores improved 30 points
from the fall to the spring when our expected growth was 15 points.

I have worked hard to develop a practice where scholars know that when they walk into
my room they will be reading and writing. In my room, students are up and moving around,
working with partners/groups, analyzing visual and audio texts. Literacy and literature are so
much bigger than just written text (though we do read a lot). We explore how to use generative
AI to assist in the writing process. I always push my students by asking them to self-evaluate
their own thinking and writing. This frustrates them at first, but by the end of the year, scholars
have grown as researchers, critical thinkers, and communicators.

It should be said, that I believe that public schools should be a place for all students to
learn and feel accepted. This is the burden of public schools and one I don’t take lightly. During
my tenure in Detroit and Grand Rapids, I have daily opened my room during lunch for chess
clubs, student- "news”, and writing clubs, and offered after-school weight lifting at a school
without a gymnasium or weight room by bringing in my own equipment. To me, track and field
provides an opportunity for student-athletes of all abilities to find a niche and success.
Personally, I grew up as a distance runner and in the past couple years taken up throwing as a
Highland Games athlete.

Spring Lake is where I live, Ferrysburg is where I serve as a firefighter, and Fruitport is
where I want to teach. With my knowledge, experience, and passion, I seek to serve my
community and it’s children.

Peace,
Jacob Robert McDougall

Jacob McDougall
510 Grandview Ave
Spring Lake, MI 49456
mcdougall.jacob@gmail.com

Fruitport Public Schools
Fruitport, Michigan
Position: High School English Teacher and
Assistant Girls’ Track Coach



 Jacob McDougall  mcdougall.jacob@gmail.com 

 510 Grandview Ave, Spring Lake MI 

 Executive Summary: 
 A passionate and charismatic leader with proven data-driven teaching, coaching, and management 
 strategies. Known for increasing rigor and raising expectations for students to see significant gains in 
 their knowledge and skill sets. I look to bring my skills and passion to serve the students in my own 
 community. 

 Education: 
 Interim Certification in Secondary English 

 Grand Valley State University 
 Bachelor of Arts 

 Major in English for Secondary Education 
 Minor in Biology for Secondary Education 

 Master’s Degree (  In Progress  24/32 credits earned) 
 Literacy Studies 

 Emphasis in TESOL 

 Teacher:  Grand Rapids University Preparatory Academy,  Grand Rapids Public School District, 
 Grand Rapids, MI, 2019-2024 

 ●  9th-10th English/Language Arts, Advisor (2019-2024) 
 ●  6th-7th English/Language Arts, Advisory and Academic Strategies (2019-2020) 
 ●  Instructional Leadership Team: Observed and mentored new teachers to the 

 building. 
 ●  Planned and implemented school wide initiatives: Content Data-driven 

 academic interventions, integrated arts initiative, vertical alignment of writing 
 and grammar instruction, English Language Learner Best Practices, Targeted 
 Academic Interventions 

 ●  Promoted best practices building wide for writing instruction and supports for 
 ELL scholars 

 ●  Promoted independent reading by planning and implemented a grade-wide 
 independent reading programs 

 Chess Club 2019-2024 
 Strength and Conditioning Club 2023-2024 
 School News Podcast 2022-2023 
 Writing Club 2019-2022 
 Lead Professional Development on Intentional Learning Cycles, English Language 
 Learners, Writing Instruction Best Practices 



 Teacher:  Mumford High School,  Detroit Public Schools Community District, Detroit, MI, 
 2017-2019 

 ●  Pathways Teacher at DPSCD (2018-2019) 
 ○  Honors English Grade 10 

 ●  Long term Substitute in Grade 12 English and Debate (2017-2018) 
 ●  Created original hands on standards based curriculum based on best practices 
 ●  Rated highly effective 2017-2018 school year 
 ●  Organized book drive to acquire nearly 1000 books for our school 

 Chess Team Coach 2018-2019 
 Credit Recovery Teacher 2017-2018 
 Winning Futures Liaison Teacher 2018-2019 
 InsideOut Literary Arts Host Teacher 
 Lead Professional Development on Intentional Learning Cycles 

 Teacher Assistant:  East Kentwood Public Schools, Kentwood,  Michigan, 2011 
 ●  Prepared and implemented units and daily engaging lessons for 12 weeks 
 ●  Received highly effective ratings on all aspects of teaching and learning 

 Middle School Youth Group Director (ages 11-18):  Spring  Valley Community Church, Allendale, 
 Michigan, July.2010-June.2012 

 ●  Provided leadership to a team of 6-10 adult volunteers 
 ●  Provided outdoor and indoor team building activities 
 ●  Provided various experiences for the youth to serve their community 
 ●  Developed and maintained personal relationships with youth through visiting their 

 schools, meeting for lunch, attending their extra curricular events, contact between 
 weekly gatherings 

 ●  Communicated with parents and students weekly through email, texts, phone calls, 
 private Facebook group, newsletters, and presentations. 

 ●  Sought out funding and donation sources 

 Skills: 
 ●  Growth Mindset- continue to look for ways to reflect and grow my instructional practices 
 ●  Highly effective communicator both in writing and verbally 
 ●  Technology Focused Classroom: always integrating 21st century technology skills into my 

 practice 
 ●  Highly skilled interpersonal mediator 
 ●  PBIS classroom 

 Leadership Experiences: 

 Crispelli’s  Royal Oak, MI  May.2016-November.2018 
 Bakery Manager 

 ●  Provide training, ongoing teaching and support to over 20 employees 
 ●  Maintain high quality, positive working environment 
 ●  Provide support for employees to ensure they are able to get to and stay on task 



 ●  Meet the daily and weekly production and sales goals 
 ●  Maintain inventory of ingredients 
 ●  Managed Accounts 
 ●  Oversaw hiring, training, firing of staff including the writing of training manual. 
 ●  Manage wholesale account customer service 
 ●  Managed the packaging and shipping of products 

 Field & Fire Bakery  Grand Rapids, MI  Aug.2014-May.2016 
 Production Manager 

 ●  Created training program for baking staff with training booklet 
 ●  Developed software for production and inventory management 
 ●  Managed food and labor costs 
 ●  Oversaw quality control 

 Other Experiences and Interests: 

 Ferrysburg Fire Department  Ferrysburg, MI Aug.2023-Current 
 Firefighter and EMS Provider 

 Service and Mission Trips: 
 Kingston, Jamaica, Service and Working with Youth 
 Gulfport, Mississippi, Disaster Relief (Multiple trips) 
 Chicago, Illinois, Service, Working with Youth, Homeless Shelters, Meeting with those living on the 
 streets 
 Toronto, Ontario, Working with homeless youth and food banks. Meeting with homeless on streets and 
 in shelters 
 Allendale, Michigan, Campus Ministry discipleship leadership 
 Las Vegas, Nevada, lived and worked with an orphanage for displaced children 
 Grand Rapids, Michigan, Living in the city provided many opportunities to work formally and informally 
 with homeless adults and youth on a daily basis. 

 Personal Interests 
 ●  Avid reader 
 ●  Sailing and paddle boarding 
 ●  I love running and fitness 
 ●  Firefighting 



EMELIA TOMBRELLA 
 

Allendale, MI  ⚫  emelia210@gmail.com  ⚫  248.978.5053 ⚫ Page 1 of 2 

SECONDARY ENGLISH TEACHER 

Seeking opportunity to… 

✔ Foster inclusive and equitable educational opportunities. 

✔ Build a collaborative and student-centered environment. 

✔ Meet the diverse needs of students and create an inclusive, supportive classroom environment. 

✔ Support students in developing self-awareness and cultural understanding to learn about their academic and 

life goals.  

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Arts (BA), Grand Valley State University, Allendale MI – Spring 2025 

Major: Secondary Education – English 

Minor: Applied Linguistics – Teaching English as a Second Language (ESL) 

Relevant Coursework: Teaching Writing: Secondary, Teaching Literature to Adolescents, Teaching ESL, Diverse 

Perspectives on Education, Assessment in Secondary Schools, Critical Issues in Literacy, American Multicultural 

Literature for Children and Young Adults, Teaching L2 Reading and Writing, Building Positive Learning 

Environments, Teaching with Technology, Universal Design for Learning: Secondary 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 

Grandville Public Schools, Grandville, MI                                                                                                     1/2025 to 6/2025 

Grandville High School, Grandville, MI (3/2025 to 6/2025)  

TEACHING INTERN, 9-12th ESL classes and push-in support  

● Teaching high and low level ESL classes and providing push-in support for other general educational 

courses.  

Grandville High School, Grandville, MI (1/2025 to 3/2025) 

TEACHING INTERN, 11th Grade ELA classes  

● Taught and co-taught 11th grade World Literature and remedial Read and Write. 

Wyoming Public Schools, Wyoming, MI                                                                                                      8/2024 to 12/2024 

Wyoming Junior High School 

TEACHING ASSISTANT, 7th Grade ELA classes  

● Aided and observed mentor teacher for half of the school day for 15 weeks and taught a 5-week 

self-created unit on the Holocaust and informational writing.  

“Emelia’s efficiency in finding out “what makes a certain student tick” is commendable! She is a work horse when it 

comes to digging into CA 60s and compliance, as well as complicated family matters. We all know that life is not 

perfect, and neither are our students. Miss Tombrella figures out “the why” behind a student’s recent absence, 

change in demeanor, or changed friendship pairing. This invaluable tool will be well-suited in her future classroom 



EMELIA TOMBRELLA 
 

Allendale, MI  ⚫  emelia210@gmail.com  ⚫  248.978.5053  ⚫  Page 2 of 2 

 
for a myriad of community & healthy mental health aspects. Her kindness & compassion are inspiring!” – Sara 

Raredon, Wyoming Junior High School, 7th grade English Language Arts. 

Literacy Center of West Michigan, Grand Rapids, MI                                                                                                 Fall 2023 

TEACHING ASSISTANT, Adult ESL health literacy class  

● Aided teacher during 2-hour classes held weekly and taught self-created lesson on depression and anxiety. 

EDUCATIONAL CONFERENCES 

85th Annual Conference- Michigan Council for Exceptional Children (MCEC) – February 2025  

2023 Michigan Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages (MITESOL) – October 2023 

MEMBERSHIPS 

Michigan Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages (MITESOL) – 2023 to Present 

Sigma Tau Delta- International English Honor Society – 2024 to Present 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

The Oasis-Grand Rapids. Comstock Park, MI                                                                               May 2022 to October 2024  

CUSTOMER SERVICE/CASHIER 

Mackinac Island Carriage Tours, Mackinac Island, MI                                                                                       Summer 2021 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 

 



Seoul International School, South Korea         August 1996 to June 1999 
Courses taught:  Biology / AP Environmental Science / Physical Science / Adapted Science  
Head of Science Department, 1998-1999 

● Facilitated K-8 Science curriculum restructuring 
● Assisted with redesign of science classrooms to support program expansion 

 
Mona Shores High School, Norton Shores, Michigan        August 1992 to June 1996 
Courses taught:  Chemistry / Physical Science  

● Engaged in Collaborative planning and evaluation of student work 
● Visited third grade classrooms with Miami University of Ohio’s Teaching Science with Toys program in 

conjunction with offering a workshop to help teachers add Toys ideas to their classrooms. 
● Assisted in the design and implementation of an Integrated Science curriculum. 

 
Lakewood Public Schools, Lake Odessa, Michigan              December 1991 to June 1992 

● Substitute Teacher, on call 
 

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS 
 
Bachelor of Science Degree, Lyman Briggs School, Michigan State University, June 1992. 

● Major:  Chemistry Education                    Minor:  Biology Education 
● Certificate:  Michigan Secondary Provisional Certificate, DA and DC 
● Completed coursework in Dec 2024, currently preparing to take MTTC to add DI endorsement to my 

teaching certificate 
 
Post-Bachelor’s Education 

● Planets, Stars, and Galaxies (Astronomy) with Lab, 4 Credits 
● Earth Systems (Gelology)  with Lab, 4 Credits 
● Instructor Training AP Environmental Science, 3 Graduate Credits 
● The Art of Exciting Science Activities, 2 Graduate Credits 
● Weather, 2 Graduate Credits 
● Forensic Science, 2 Graduate Credits 
● Teaching Science with Toys, 3 Graduate Credits - Physics; 3 Graduate Credits - Chemistry 
● Chemistry and Crime: Elements of Forensic Science, 4 Graduate Credits 
● Research Act Teachers of Chemical Education, 1 Graduate Credit 
● Teaching for Multiple Intelligences, 2 Graduate Credits 

 
Notable Professional Development  

● IB Biology Instructor Training (Level II and III) 
● IB Environmental Systems Instructor Training 
● NGSS Workshops with Paul Andersen - February 2021, November 2020 and October 2016 
● NGSS Workshops with Chris Charnitski - February 2020 and August 2019 
● AERO Summer Science Institute, Summer 2011 
● Project Based Learning Workshop, January 2019 
● The Next Frontier: Inclusion Workshop with Bill and Ochan Powell, November 2013 

 
 

EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 
 
Phi Delta Kappa:  1997 - 1999  

● Editor of the PDK newsletter for the Seoul Chapter and School Representative, 1998 - 1999  
 
Speaker / Inservice presenter:   

● Assoc. Of American Schools in S. America (AASSA) Conference, Co-presenter, 2009-2010 
● American Chemical Society’s Regional Meeting at Clemson University, August 1996 - Represented 

Miami University of Ohio; presented ideas for incorporating the study of forensic science into a general 
chemistry course 



● National Science Teachers Association, National Convention, March 1994 - Represented Miami 
University of Ohio; presented ideas for investigating the science behind common toys 

● American Chemical Society, Chemistry Day at the Mall:  October 1993, 1994, 1995 
● Presented inservice training involving the Teaching of Science with Toys, 1994 

 
Cheerleading Coach: 

● Escola Graduada de São Paulo, Varsity and Junior Varsity 
● Seoul International School, Varsity and Junior Varsity 

○ Organized and hosted KAIAC cheerleading tournament, 1997 
● Junior Varsity Cheerleading Coach, Lakewood High School, Fall Semester 1991 

 
Acre Community Service Program: 1999 - 2004 

● Service project with a 3 week boat trip to deliver school supplies and work with teachers at remote 
schools in a rubber tapper reserve in the Brazilian Rainforest in the state of Acre, Brazil 

● Trip co-leader 2001 and 2004 
 
Alianca Mobile Veterinary Clinic, Sao Paulo, Brazil 

● Volunteered at a veterinary clinic serving underprivileged communities 
● Duties included communicating with pet owners during in-take and release of pet, cleaning and 

sterilizing equipment and surgery suite, assisting veterinarian during surgical procedures  
 
Activities:    

● Junior Class / Prom Co-Sponsor, International School of Kuala Lumpur, 2010 - 2011 
● Junior Class / Prom Co-Sponsor, Nido de Aguilas, 2009 - 2010 
● Junior Class / Prom Co-Sponsor, Seoul International School, 1998 - 1999  
● Freshman Class Sponsor, Mona Shores High School, 1995 - 1996 
● SPCA Community Service Club Sponsor, ISKL, 2010 - 2016 
● High Four Science Competition Sponsor, ISKL 
● Citizen Science Club Sponsor, ISKL, 2023 - 2024 
● High School Social Committee, Nido de Aguilas, 2008 - 2010 
● PRIDE Co-advisor, Mona Shores High School, 1994 - 1996 
● Students for Environmental Awareness Advisor, Mona Shores High School, 1992 - 1996 
● Graded Ecology Club Sponsor, Escola Graduada, 2005 - 2006 
● Academic Booster Club, Mona Shores High School,  Staff representative, 1994 - 1996 

 
Graduation / Senior Celebration, Mona Shores High School:  1993 - 1996 

● Instrumental in founding this event and assisted parents in organizing and implementing this event 
since its inception in the 1993 - 1994 school year  

 
 

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES 
 

Power School〡Google Workspace〡Google Classroom〡Microsoft Office Suite〡LoggerPro〡 ManageBac 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

Michigan Standard Teaching Certificate: DA & DC endorsement is current   
DI coursework completed, preparing to take MTTC assessment to add DI endorsement 
 
 

REFERENCES 
 

Jeff Farrington     Work: +603 4813 5272 E-mail:    jfarrington@iskl.edu.my 
High School Principal, ISKL 
 
Mary Davenport    Work: +603 4813 5272 E-mail:    mdavenport@iskl.edu.my 
Assistant High School Principal, ISKL 
 
Rami Madani     Work: +603 4813 5003 E-mail:    rmadani@iskl.edu.my 
Head of School, ISKL 



Kennedy, Jason <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>

New Hire
1 message

Winskas, John <jwinskas@fruitportschools.net> Fri, Jun 13, 2025 at 3:46 PM
To: Mark Mesbergen <mmesbergen@fruitportschools.net>, Jason Kennedy <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>

I’m excited to recommend Cole Woodard for the receiving and grounds position! As a graduate of FCS, I truly believe
Cole would be a fantastic addition to our team. Please don't hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. Have a
great weekend. 

John



 

Cole Woodard  
5487 Jensen Rd 
Fruitport, MI, 49415 

(231)-340-1759 
colewoodard55@gmail.com 

Skills 

I have basic mechanic skills, problem solving,  as well as my MLR certification. One of my best skills is 

my ability to learn. I am an exceptional student and easily taught.  

Experience  
June  2023 - Present 

Fruitport High School Operations- employee 
● In charge of the upkeep and operation of the entire school district.  
● Forklift trained.  
● Experience in concrete pouring and forming.  
● Vehicle maintenance 
● Experience in demolition 

July  2023 - November 2023 

Maple Hill Driving Range- Range Cleaner 
● Landscape and grass cutting experience 
● Salesman  
● Range cleaner (picked and cleaned golf balls) 

Education 
 
August  2020 - Present 

Fruitport HS, Fruitport, MI - Graduate - 3.8 GPA 
● Captain of the robotics team.  
● Have been on varsity golf team since my freshman year 
● Honor role 

September  2023 - Present 

Muskegon Area Career Tech Center, Muskegon, MI - Automotive Service Technologies - 
3.9 

● MLR  
● Basic maintenance, minor engine repair, wheels and tires, drive train repair and 

maintenance 

References 
John Winskas - Operations Director of Fruitport Schools - (231) 206-2904 
Kris Cole -Vice President of the school board of Fruitport Community Schools- (231) 206-2760 

 



5/19/2025

Fruitport Middle School
3113 Pontaluna Rd
Fruitport, MI 49415

Dear Monte Kelly and Trista Stingle,

I am writing to formally resign from my position at Fruitport Middle School, effective August 
3rd, 2025. 

Working at Fruitport has been an incredibly rewarding experience. I am sincerely grateful for the 
opportunities I've had to grow professionally and contribute to the school community. The 
support from the staff and the relationships I've built with students have made this a truly 
meaningful part of my career.

This decision was not made lightly, but after thoughtful consideration, I believe it is the right 
step for me at this time. I am committed to ensuring a smooth transition and will do everything I 
can to support my students and colleagues during this period.

Thank you again for the opportunity to be part of the Fruitport Middle School team. I wish the 
school continued success and growth in the future.

Sincerely,
Christina Damm





Kennedy, Jason <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>

Resignation
Houseman, Kathrine <khouseman@fruitportschools.net> Mon, May 19, 2025 at 7:16 PM
To: Greg Bodrie <gbodrie@fruitportschools.net>, Jason Kennedy <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>

Good evening Jason and Greg, 

It is with a heavy heart that I am writing to formally resign from my position as Special Education Supervisor
at the Eastern Service Unit, effective June 27th. 

This decision was not made lightly, as I have greatly valued my time here. I am grateful for the opportunities
I've had to grow professionally, collaborate with a dedicated team, and contribute to meaningful work. It has
been a pleasure to be part of the Eastern Service Unit, and I have learned so much during my time here.
Ultimately, I have a huge desire to be in the community I grew up in and spend more time with my family. My
heart truly led me to this decision.

I am committed to ensuring a smooth transition. I will do everything I can in the coming weeks to wrap up
my responsibilities.

Thank you for the support and encouragement you've provided me over these four years. I am so grateful
for the amazing opportunities I have had!

With gratitude, 

Katie Houseman-Parker

"Every child has a gift, they just unwrap their packages at different times". 

Katie Houseman-Parker
Special Education Supervisor, ESU
231-865-3188, Ext. 1422



 
Fruitport Community Schools 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 9, 2025 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
Meeting Location: 
Fruitport Community Schools Central Office 
Board of Education Meeting Room 
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd. 
Fruitport, MI 49415 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER: The Regular meeting of the Board of Education was called to order 

at 6:15 p.m. by Board President, Dave Hazekamp. 
 

II. ROLL CALL: Present – Tim Burgess, Kris Cole, Dave Hazekamp, JB Meeuwenberg. 
Absent: Steve Kelly, Josh Mueller, Kathy Six. 

 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Item 25-72. MOTION by Cole, SECOND by Meeuwenberg to approve the agenda, as 
presented. 
 

 MOTION CARRIED: 4-0; 3 absent. 

IV. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC: None 

V. GENERAL BOARD BUSINESS: 
 

1. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes - May 19, 2025 

Item 25-73. MOTION by Burgess, SECOND by Cole to approve the regular meeting 
minutes from the Board of Education meeting on May 19, 2025, as presented. 

MOTION CARRIED: 4-0; 3 absent. 
 

2. Purchase of Special Education Bus 



Item 25-74. MOTION by Meeuwenberg, SECOND by Cole to approve the proposal from 
Midwest Transit Equipment, Inc. in the amount of $111,061, with funds coming out of 
the FY 2026 Section 22l transportation line item in the budget, as discussed. 

MOTION CARRIED: 4-0; 3 absent. 
 

3. School Infrastructure and Bond Planning Discussion 

○ Review Community Survey Data 

Superintendent Kennedy provided a copy of the data collected from the Post 
Election May 2025 Bond Community Survey that closed on June 9, 2025 at 12:00 
p.m. to the Board of Education. Superintendent Kennedy reviewed the responses 
and feedback from each of the ten (10) survey questions with the Board of 
Education and those in attendance at the meeting. Key themes were summarized 
and shared publicly. Results of the community survey will be posted to the 
District’s website. 

○ Discussion on Constituent Feedback to Board Members 

Board members discussed feedback that they have received from constituents and 
community members. The constituent feedback was comparable to the feedback 
received from the survey. The community survey and feedback received by Board 
members will be used to develop next steps and a plan to move forward. 

○ Discuss Next Steps and Bond Planning Options 

Superintendent Kennedy, Josh Szymanski (Owen Ames Kimball, Co.), and Matt 
Wakely (TowerPinkster) discussed options for consideration by the Board that 
aligned with the feedback received through the community survey and through 
feedback to board members. All of the options that were presented for 
consideration eliminated the construction of a new soccer field. The Board will 
continue its discussion at the regularly scheduled Board of Education meeting on 
June 23, 2025 to determine next steps. Should the Board desire to place a bond 
proposal on the November 2025 ballot, the deadline for filing a resolution with 
the County Clerk is August 12, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. 

VI. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC: 

○ Adam Tiefenbach discussed the importance of including improvements to the 
Early Childhood Center and to Edgewood Elementary as a part of any future bond 
proposal. 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Item 25-75. MOTION by Cole, SECOND by Meeuwenberg to adjourn. 



 
MOTION CARRIED: 4-0; 3 absent. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Kris Cole, Acting Board Secretary 

 

Jason Kennedy, Acting Recording Secretary 



 AGENDA SECTION: General Board Business      
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date:  June 23, 2025 

 
 
To: Board of Education                   Attachment # X-1 
    
 
From: Jason Kennedy 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:   
MHSAA 2025-2026 Annual Membership. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information:   
See attached 
 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: None 
 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:   
To approve the adoption of the 2025-2026 MHSAA Annual Membership Resolution as prepared by the 
MHSAA for participation.  Roll call vote. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Burgess             ___ Cole      ___ Hazekamp               ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg      ___ Mueller            ___ Six 

 



 
 _______________________________________________ the School(s) which are under the direction of this Board of 
Education/Governing Body. 
 
(Junior high/middle and senior high schools of your school system which are to be listed as MHSAA members and receive 
MHSAA mailings during 2025-26 must be listed on the back of this form) 
 
_______________________________________________ City/Township of ________________________________ 
 
County of ________________________________, of State of Michigan, are hereby: 

(A) enrolled as members of the Michigan High School Athletic Association, Inc., a nonprofit association, and 
(B) are further enrolled to participate in the approved interschool athletic activities sponsored by said association. 

 
The Board of Education/Governing Body hereby delegates to the Superintendent or his/her designee(s) the responsibility for 
the supervision and control of said activities, and hereby accepts the Constitution and By-Laws of said association and adopts 
as its own the rules, regulations and interpretations (as minimum standards), as published in the current HANDBOOK as the 
governing code under which the said school(s) shall conduct its program of interscholastic athletics and agrees to primary 
enforcement of said rules, regulations, interpretations and qualifications.  In addition, it is hereby agreed that schools which 
host or participate in the association's meets and tournaments shall follow and enforce all tournament policies, procedures 
and schedules. 
 
This authorization shall be effective from August 1, 2025 and shall remain effective until July 31, 2026, during which the autho-
rization may not be revoked. 

RECORD OF ADOPTION 
The above resolution was adopted by the Board of Education/Governing Body of the 
 
________________________________________ School(s), on the _____ day of ________________, 2025,  
and is so recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the said Board/Governing Body. 
 
_________________________________________          _________________________________________ 
           (Governing Body Name)              Board Secretary Signature 
_________________________________________          or Designee 
                     (Address)           Check if Designee 
_________________________________________        
               (City & Zip Code)   
_________________________________________        
               (Contact E-mail)   

1661 Ramblewood Drive 
East Lansing, MI 48823 

(517) 332-5046

The Michigan High School Athletic Association is a voluntary, nonprofit corporation comprised of public, private and parochial junior high/ middle and senior high schools whose 
Boards of Education/Governing Bodies have voluntarily applied for and received membership for and on behalf of their secondary schools.  The association sponsors statewide tour-
naments and makes eligibility rules with respect to participation in such Michigan High School Athletic Association sponsored tournaments in the various sports.  Each Board of 
Education/Governing Body that wishes to host or participate in such meets and tournaments must join the MHSAA and agree to abide by and enforce the MHSAA rules, regulations 
and qualifications concerning eligibility, game rules and tournament policies, procedures and schedules. It is a condition for participation in any MHSAA postseason tournaments 
that high schools adhere to at least the minimum standards of Regulation I and the maximum limitations of Regulation II in ALL MHSAA Tournament sports. 

Michigan High School Athletic Association tournaments are the collective property of the MHSAA and not of any individual member school.   The MHSAA reserves the right to 
promote and advance the membership’s interests with publication information; exclusive arrangements to create recognition and exposure for school-sponsored activities; restrictive 
policies prohibiting exploitation and commercialization of MHSAA-sponsored tournaments; appropriate proprietary interests, and the use of images or transmissions identifying contest 
officials, spectators and member schools’ students, personnel and marks. 

To obtain membership, it is necessary for the Board of Education/Governing Body to adopt the following resolution for its junior high/middle and senior high schools.  This reso-
lution must be formally ratified by your Board of Education/Governing Body and properly signed.  Please return one signed copy for our files and retain one copy for your files. 
Resolutions that are modified in any way or are supplemented with letters placing additional conditions on MHSAA membership or tournament participation shall be rejected.

-OVER-

MEMBERSHIP RESOLUTION 
For the year August 1, 2025 — through July 31, 2026

2025-26

Please be sure to save document and then send to camala@mhsaa.com as an attachment.



Schools Which Are To Be MHSAA Members During 2025-26

NOTE:  Pursuant to the MHSAA Constitution, all high schools, junior high/middle schools, or other schools of Michigan doing a grade of work corresponding to such schools, 
may become members of this organization provided (a) the school building has enrollment and onsite attendance of at least 15 students, whether for grades 6 through 8 
or 9, grades 7 through 8 or 9, or grades 9 or 10 through 12; and (b) if a nonpublic school, the school qualifies for federal income tax exemption as a not-for-profit orga-
nization. To reach the15-student minimum for middle school membership, schools may join the MHSAA at the 6th-grade level whether or not 6th-grade students participate 
in athletics. 
A. This Section does not require school districts to become member schools at the junior high/middle school level and does not require school districts to

sponsor any interscholastic athletics for 6th-grade students.
B. If a school district’s MHSAA Membership Resolution lists a junior high/middle school as an MHSAA member school, and if the school sponsors a 6th-grade

team in any sport or permits a 6th-grade student to participate with 7th- and/or 8th-grade students in any sport, then all of Regulations III and IV apply to
all 6th-graders in all sports involving 6th-graders on teams sponsored by that school. If the school does not allow any 6th-graders to participate in a sport,
MHSAA rules do not apply in that sport.

If necessary, list additional schools  
for either column on a separate sheet.

Name the Member High School(s) 

1. __________________________________________

2. __________________________________________

3. __________________________________________

4. __________________________________________

5. __________________________________________

6. __________________________________________

7. __________________________________________

8. __________________________________________

9. __________________________________________

10. __________________________________________

11. ___________________________________________

12. __________________________________________

13. __________________________________________

14. __________________________________________

15. __________________________________________

Name the Member Junior High /Middle School(s) 
(member 6th, 7th and 8th-grade buildings) 

1. ______________________________________________________
Name of Member School 

Configuration of grades in building (e.g. K-6, 6-8, 7-8, 7-9): ________ 
Provide anticipated 2025-26 7th and 8th-grade enrollment  ________ 
Provide anticipated 2025-26 6th-grade enrollment      ________ 
Grade levels for membership:  6 7 8 

1.     Yes            No  6th-graders will be participating in at least one
sport with 7th and 8th graders. If yes, and not housed in the same
building, add the name of the building that houses 6th-graders on the
line below.

________________________________________________________

2. ______________________________________________________
Name of Member School 

Configuration of grades in building (e.g. K-6, 6-8, 7-8, 7-9): ________ 
Provide anticipated 2025-26 7th and 8th-grade enrollment  ________ 
Provide anticipated 2025-26 6th-grade enrollment     ________ 
Grade levels for membership:  6 7 8  

1.     Yes            No  6th-graders will be participating in at least one
sport with 7th and 8th graders. If yes, and not housed in the same
building, add the name of the building that houses 6th-graders on the
line below.

________________________________________________________

3. ______________________________________________________
Name of Member School 

Configuration of grades in building (e.g. K-6, 6-8, 7-8, 7-9): ________ 
Provide anticipated 2025-26 7th and 8th-grade enrollment  ________ 
Provide anticipated 2025-26 6th-grade enrollment     ________ 
Grade levels for membership:  6 7 8 

��    Yes             No  6th-graders will be participating in at least one
sport with 7th and 8th graders. If yes, and not housed in the same
building, add the name of the building that houses 6th-graders on the
line below.

________________________________________________________

List separately from JH/MS even if all grades are housed in the 
same building. List separately from HS even if all grades are housed in the same building.

Please be sure to save document and then send to camala@mhsaa.com as an attachment.



 AGENDA SECTION: General Board Business      
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date:  June 23, 2025 

 
 
To: Board of Education                   Attachment # X-2 
    
 
From: Jason Kennedy 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:   
MASB 2025-2026 Annual Membership Dues 
 

 
 

 
Background Information:   
See attached 
 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: $6,070.65 coming out of the General Fund 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:   
To approve payment of the MASB 2025-2026 Annual Membership Dues invoice in the amount of 
$6,070.65, as discussed. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Burgess             ___ Cole               ___ Hazekamp               ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg      ___ Mueller          ___ Six 

 



 AGENDA SECTION: General Board Business   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
To: Board of Education            Attachment #: X-3 
 
From: Jason Kennedy 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 

• District Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Update 
 

 
 
Background Information: 
The District has updated its Emergency Operations Plan to align with recommendations from the Michigan 
State Police EOP template and the I Love U Guys Foundation Standard Response Protocol. Each District in 
the Muskegon Area Intermediate School District is following a similar template so that language in the plans 
is uniform across the county. 

  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the District’s Emergency Operation Plan (EOP), as discussed. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess ___ Cole ___ Hazekamp ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg     ___ Mueller       ___ Six   
 

 





 

 
Business and Finance Committee  

Monday, June 16, 2025 
5:00 p.m. 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Location: 
Fruitport Community Schools Central Office 
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd. 
Fruitport, MI 49415 
 
Attendance: 
The meeting was called to order at 5:10 p.m. with Kris Cole, Dave Hazekamp, Jason Kennedy, 
and Mark Mesbergen present. 

 
1. MASB Annual Membership Dues – Jason shared the annual invoice from MASB. Jason 

shared some of the background information regarding MASB. 
  

2. Final Budget Amendment (2024-2025) – Mark presented the final amendments for all of 
the budgets. Mark shared the changes throughout the budgets and answered any questions 
the committee hard. Mark will be presenting at the Truth and Taxation hearing to share the 
high level changes.  
 

3. Original Budget Amendment (2025-2026) – Mark presented the original budgets for all 
of the budgetary funds. Mark shared the assumptions used throughout the budgets and 
answered any questions the committee hard. Mark will be presenting at the Truth and 
Taxation hearing to share the high level changes.  
 

4. WMHIP Board Member Resolution- The West Michigan Health Insurance Pool 
(WMHIP) is a group of schools/townships/cities that are pooled together to get the best 
insurance prices possible. One requirement to be a member is having two trustees. WMHIP 
is currently updating their trustee list and we currently have an employee that is no longer 
working for Fruitport. Therefore, we need to update the Trustee and the recommendation 
is to add Jessica Wiseman as the second trustee.  
 



 

5. November 2025 Bond Proposal Discussion - The Committee discussed the options for a 
potential upcoming bond election in November.  
 

6. Other: 
a. None 

 
7. Public Comment: None 

 
8. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 5:43 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted by Mark Mesbergen, Director of Business Services 



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Approval of Budget Appropriations Act of the 2024-25 General Fund. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
Budgets are reviewed periodically as funding information becomes available, and as events occur during the 
fiscal year.  Budgets are amended to align with projected revenues and expenditures. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
Provides for proper authority to expend these funds. 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
Approval of general fund budget amendment as presented in attached document.  Roll Call Vote… 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess       ___ Cole    ___ Hazekamp         ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg          ___ Mueller            ___ Six   
 

 



GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT					

Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of	the

Fruitport	Community	Schools	District

RESOLVED,	that	this	resolution	shall	be	the	GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT	of	the	Fruitport	Community

Schools	district	for	the	fiscal	year	2024-25,	an	ACT	to	make	appropriations;	to	provide	for	the	expenditure	of	the

appropriations;	and	to	provide	for	the	disposition	of	all	income	received	by	the	Fruitport	Community	Schools	district.

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	total	revenues	and	unappropriated	fund	balance	estimated	to	be	available

for	appropriations	in	the	GENERAL	FUND	of	the	Fruitport	Community	Schools	district	for	fiscal	year	2024-25

is	as	follows:

Code	#

REVENUES: 	Original	Budget	 		Amendment	 Proposed	Final

100 Local 3,986,559$																										 4,417,009$																								 5,085,824$																						

300 State 30,531,376$																							 31,280,857$																					 32,388,366$																				

400 Federal 2,254,845$																										 2,483,591$																								 2,589,363$																						

				500-600 Incoming	Transfers 1,621,283$																										 1,946,962$																								 1,868,284$																						

Total	Revenues 38,394,063$																							 40,128,419$																					 41,931,837$																				

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction	-
110 					Basic	Program 14,795,948$																							 15,583,731$																					 15,427,817$																				

120 					Added	Needs 6,920,770$																										 7,209,535$																								 7,082,984$																						

130 					Adult	&	Continuing 164,781$																													 172,980$																											 234,173$																										

Total	Instruction: 21,881,499$																							 22,966,246$																					 22,744,974$																				

Support	Services	-
210 					Pupil 4,154,754$																										 4,545,826$																								 4,677,669$																						

220 					Instructional	Staff 1,717,250$																										 1,851,434$																								 1,886,416$																						

230 					General	Administration 627,853$																													 648,508$																											 649,508$																										

240 					School/Building	Administration 2,102,340$																										 2,180,980$																								 2,169,164$																						

250 					Business 624,924$																													 697,362$																											 889,131$																										

260 					Operations	&	Maintenance	of	Plant 3,406,839$																										 3,738,757$																								 4,151,383$																						

270 					Transportation 2,592,070$																										 2,605,911$																								 2,580,600$																						

				280-290 					Other 538,695$																													 691,393$																											 721,014$																										

293 					Athletics 817,281$																													 830,925$																											 847,218$																										

Total	Support	Services: 16,582,006$																							 17,791,096$																					 18,572,103$																				

300 					Community	Service 101,005$																													 109,952$																											 112,405$																										

				400-600 					Outgoing	Transfer	&	Fund	Modifications 338,058$																													 283,378$																											 596,378$																										

Total	Expenditures 38,902,568$																							 41,150,672$																					 42,025,860$																				

Excess	Expenditures	Over	Revenues (508,505)$																												 (1,022,253)$																						 (94,023)$																											



GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT					

Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of	the

Fruitport	Community	Schools	District

	Original	Budget	 		Amendment	 Proposed	Final
Fund	Balance	Information
Fund	Balance	7/1/24

					Unassigned 7,240,196$																										 8,700,930$																								 8,700,930$																						

					Assigned -$																																						 -$																																				 -$																																		

Fund	Balance	Impact	Surplus/Deficit

					Unassigned (508,505)$																												 (1,022,253)$																						 (94,023)$																											

					Assigned -$																																						 -$																																				 -$																																		

Projected	Ending	Fund	Balance	2024-25

					Unassigned 6,731,691$																										 17.3% 7,678,677$																								 18.7% 8,606,907$																						 20.5%

					Assigned -$																																						 -$																																				 -$																																		

FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	no	Board	of	Education	member	or	employee	of	the	school

district	shall	expend	any	funds	or	obligate	the	expenditure	of	any	funds	except	pursuant	to	

appropriations	made	by	the	Board	of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary

policy	statement	hitherto	adopted.		Changes	in	the	amount	appropriated	shall	require

approval	by	the	Board.

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	Superintendent	is	hereby	charged	with	general

supervision	of	the	execution	of	the	budget	adopted	by	the	Board	and	shall	hold	the

department	heads	responsible	for	performance	of	their	responsibilities	within	the	amounts

appropriated	by	the	Board	of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary	policy

statement	hitherto	adopted	by	the	Board	of	Education.

This	act	is	to	take	effect	on	June	23,	2025.

MOTION	by

SUPPORT	by

ROLL	CALL	VOTE:

Motion	



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Approval of the School Service Fund (Early Childhood & Preschool, Food Service Program and 
Technology and Security Millage) Budget Amendment for 2024-2025. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
Budgets are reviewed periodically as funding information becomes available, and as events occur during the 
fiscal year.  Budgets are amended to align with projected revenues and expenditures. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
Provides for proper authority to expend these funds. 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
Approval of 2024-2025 School Service Fund budget amendment as presented in attached document.  Roll 
Call Vote… 
 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess       ___ Cole    ___ Hazekamp         ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg          ___ Mueller            ___ Six   
 

 



2024-2025	SCHOOL	SERVICE	FUND	Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of		Fruitport	Community	Schools.

Code	# Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act. Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act. Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act.

100 Local 95,500$														 941,280$													 6,000$																 715,000$												 84,500$														 927,000$												 4,500$																		 855,000$										 77,500$											 828,000$												 4,500$														 855,000$										

300 State 382,703$												 -$																						 -$																					 -$																					 380,318$												 -$																				 -$																							 -$																			 358,621$									 -$																				 -$																		 -$																		

400 Federal 1,534,618$									 -$																						 -$																					 -$																					 1,454,796$								 -$																				 -$																							 -$																			 1,464,796$						 -$																				 -$																		 -$																		

500-600 Incoming	Transfers -$																					 -$																						 650,000$												 -$																					 -$																				 -$																				 651,978$														 -$																			 -$																				 651,978$									 -$																		

2,012,821$									 941,280$													 656,000$												 715,000$												 1,919,614$								 927,000$												 656,478$														 855,000$										 1,900,917$						 828,000$												 656,478$									 855,000$										

Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act. Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act. Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act.

220 Instructional	Staff -$																					 -$																						 487,700$												 -$																					 -$																				 -$																				 342,700$														 -$																			 -$																		 -$																				 301,000$									 -$																		

250 Business -$																					 300$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																				 250$																			 -$																							 -$																			 -$																		 150$																			 -$																		 -$																		

260 Operations	&	Maintenance	 -$																					 1,200$																	 -$																					 -$																					 -$																				 1,200$																 -$																							 -$																			 -$																		 1,200$																 -$																		 -$																		

270 Transportation -$																					 6,750$																	 -$																					 -$																					 -$																				 6,750$																 -$																							 -$																			 -$																		 6,100$																 -$																		 -$																		

280-290 Other 1,987,276$									 -$																						 76,126$														 700,000$												 1,966,042$								 -$																				 73,231$																 825,000$										 1,877,395$						 -$																				 73,231$											 825,000$										

300 Community	Service -$																					 1,064,108$									 -$																					 -$																					 -$																				 1,079,442$								 -$																							 -$																			 -$																		 998,880$												 -$																		 -$																		

400 Building	Improvements -$																					 -$																						 3,014$																 -$																					 -$																				 -$																				 141,918$														 -$																			 -$																		 -$																				 150,000$									 -$																		

600 Fund	Modifications 50,000$														 25,000$															 -$																					 -$																					 50,000$														 25,000$														 -$																							 -$																			 50,000$											 25,000$														 -$																		 -$																		

2,037,276$									 1,097,358$									 566,840$												 700,000$												 2,016,042$								 1,112,642$								 557,849$														 825,000$										 1,927,395$						 1,031,330$								 524,231$									 825,000$										

Proposed	Final

EXPENDITURES:

Total	Expenditures

Original	Budget Amendment

Total	Revenues

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	amount	designated	below	of	the	total	available	to	appropriate	in	the	SCHOOL	

SERVICE	FUND	is	hereby	appropriated	in	the	amounts	and	for	the	purposes	set	forth	below:

RESOLVED,	that	the	total	revenues	and	unappropriated	fund	balance	estimated	to	be	available	for	appropriation	in	

the	SCHOOL	SERVICE	FUND	of	Fruitport	Community	Schools	for	fiscal	year	2024-25	be	adopted	as	follows:

Original	Budget Amendment Proposed	Final

REVENUES:



2024-2025	SCHOOL	SERVICE	FUND	Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of		Fruitport	Community	Schools.

Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act. Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act. Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act.

Fund	Balance	7/1/24

					Committed	fund	balance

Undesignated 549,740$												 671,868$													 700,989$												 591,565$												 533,855$												 685,856$												 795,807$														 681,357$										 533,855$									 685,856$												 795,807$									 681,357$										

549,740$												 671,868$													 700,989$												 591,565$												 533,855$												 685,856$												 795,807$														 681,357$										 533,855$									 685,856$												 795,807$									 681,357$										

									Surplus/Deficit (24,455)$													 (156,078)$											 89,160$														 15,000$														 (96,428)$												 (185,642)$										 98,629$																 30,000$												 (26,478)$										 (203,330)$										 132,247$									 30,000$												

525,285$												 515,790$													 790,149$												 606,565$												 437,427$												 500,214$												 894,436$														 711,357$										 507,377$									 482,526$												 928,054$									 711,357$										

MOTION	by

SUPPORT	by

ROLL	CALL	VOTE:

Motion:

President,	Fruitport	Board	of	Education

Amendment Proposed	Final

Projected	Ending	Fund	Balance											

2024-25

FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	no	Board	of	Education	member	or	employee	of	the	school	district	shall	expend	any	funds	or	obligate	the	expenditure	

of	any	funds	except	pursuant	to	appropriations	made	by	the	Board	of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary	policy	statement	hitherto	

adopted.		Changes	in	the	amount	appropriated	shall	require	approval	by	the	Board.

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	Superintendent	is	hereby	charged	with	general	supervision	of	the	execution	of	the	budget	adopted	by	the	

Board	and	shall	hold	the	department	heads	responsible	for	performance	of	their	responsibilities	within	the	amounts	appropriated	by	the	Board	

of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary	policy	statement	hitherto	adopted	by	the	Board	of	Education.	This	act	is	to	take	effect	on	June		

23,	2025.

Original	Budget

Fund	Balance	Information

Total	Beginning	Fund	Balance



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Approval of Budget Appropriations Act of the 2025-26 General Fund. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
The Board of Education is required by law to adopt the General Fund budget for the ensuing fiscal year 
beginning July 1. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
Provides for proper authorization for the expenditure of funds (see attached resolution). 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
Adoption of Budget Appropriations Act for 2025-26 General Fund as presented in the attached resolution.  
Roll Call Vote… 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess       ___ Cole    ___ Hazekamp         ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg          ___ Mueller            ___ Six   
 

 



GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT					

Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of	the

Fruitport	Community	Schools	District

RESOLVED,	that	this	resolution	shall	be	the	GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT	of	the	Fruitport	Community

Schools	district	for	the	fiscal	year	2025-26,	an	ACT	to	make	appropriations;	to	provide	for	the	expenditure	of	the

appropriations;	and	to	provide	for	the	disposition	of	all	income	received	by	the	Fruitport	Community	Schools	district.

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	total	revenues	and	unappropriated	fund	balance	estimated	to	be	available

for	appropriations	in	the	GENERAL	FUND	of	the	Fruitport	Community	Schools	district	for	fiscal	year	2025-26

is	as	follows:

Code	#

REVENUES: 	Proposed	Budget	

100 Local 4,657,953$																										

300 State 30,962,526$																							

400 Federal 1,714,602$																										

				500-600 Incoming	Transfers 2,560,391$																										

Total	Revenues 39,895,472$																							

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction	-
110 					Basic	Program 15,339,212$																							

120 					Added	Needs 7,231,723$																										

130 					Adult	&	Continuing 290,179$																													

Total	Instruction: 22,861,114$																							

Support	Services	-
210 					Pupil 4,879,559$																										

220 					Instructional	Staff 1,534,764$																										

230 					General	Administration 646,533$																													

240 					School/Building	Administration 2,169,643$																										

250 					Business 673,428$																													

260 					Operations	&	Maintenance	of	Plant 3,634,183$																										

270 					Transportation 2,544,218$																										

				280-290 					Other 537,346$																													

293 					Athletics 867,442$																													

Total	Support	Services: 17,487,116$																							

300 					Community	Service 100,905$																													

				400-600 					Outgoing	Transfer	&	Fund	Modifications 169,516$																													

Total	Expenditures 40,618,651$																							



GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT					

Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of	the

Fruitport	Community	Schools	District

Excess	Expenditures	Over	Revenues (723,179)$																												



GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT					

Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of	the

Fruitport	Community	Schools	District

	Proposed	Budget	
Fund	Balance	Information
Fund	Balance	7/1/25

					Unassigned 8,606,907$																										

					Assigned -$																																						

Fund	Balance	Impact	Surplus/Deficit

					Unassigned (723,179)$																												

					Assigned -$																																						

Projected	Ending	Fund	Balance	2025-26

					Unassigned 7,883,728$																										 19.4%

					Assigned -$																																						

FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	no	Board	of	Education	member	or	employee	of	the	school

district	shall	expend	any	funds	or	obligate	the	expenditure	of	any	funds	except	pursuant	to	

appropriations	made	by	the	Board	of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary

policy	statement	hitherto	adopted.		Changes	in	the	amount	appropriated	shall	require

approval	by	the	Board.

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	Superintendent	is	hereby	charged	with	general

supervision	of	the	execution	of	the	budget	adopted	by	the	Board	and	shall	hold	the

department	heads	responsible	for	performance	of	their	responsibilities	within	the	amounts

appropriated	by	the	Board	of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary	policy

statement	hitherto	adopted	by	the	Board	of	Education.

This	act	is	to	take	effect	on	June	23,	2025.

MOTION	by

SUPPORT	by

ROLL	CALL	VOTE:

Motion	



GENERAL	APPROPRIATIONS	ACT					

Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of	the

Fruitport	Community	Schools	District



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Approval of Budget Appropriations Act of the 2025-26 School Service Fund (Early Childhood & Preschool 
Programs, Food Service Program, Technology and Security Millage Fund, and Fiduciary Accounts). 
 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
The Board of Education is required by law to adopt the School Service Fund budgets for the ensuing fiscal 
year beginning July 1. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
Provides for proper authorization for the expenditure of funds (see attached resolution). 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
Adoption of the 2025-26 School Service Fund as presented in the attached resolutions. Roll Call Vote… 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess       ___ Cole    ___ Hazekamp         ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg          ___ Mueller            ___ Six   
 

 



2024-2025	SCHOOL	SERVICE	FUND	Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of		Fruitport	Community	

Schools.

Code	# Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act.

100 Local 77,500$														 902,000$													 4,500$																 855,000$												

300 State 358,621$												 -$																						 -$																					 -$																					

400 Federal 1,464,796$									 -$																						 -$																					 -$																					

500-600 Incoming	Transfers -$																					 -$																						 651,978$												 -$																					

1,900,917$									 902,000$													 656,478$												 855,000$												

Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act.

220 Instructional	Staff -$																					 -$																						 342,700$												 -$																					

250 Business -$																					 250$																					 -$																					 -$																					

260 Operations	&	Maintenance	 -$																					 1,200$																	 -$																					 -$																					

270 Transportation -$																					 6,750$																	 -$																					 -$																					

280-290 Other 1,937,146$									 -$																						 75,287$														 825,000$												

300 Community	Service -$																					 1,085,790$									 -$																					 -$																					

400 Building	Improvements -$																					 -$																						 141,918$												 -$																					

600 Fund	Modifications 50,000$														 25,000$															 -$																					 -$																					

1,987,146$									 1,118,990$									 559,905$												 825,000$												

EXPENDITURES:

Total	Expenditures

Proposed	Original	Budget

Total	Revenues

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	amount	designated	below	of	the	total	available	to	appropriate	in	the	SCHOOL	

SERVICE	FUND	is	hereby	appropriated	in	the	amounts	and	for	the	purposes	set	forth	below:

RESOLVED,	that	the	total	revenues	and	unappropriated	fund	balance	estimated	to	be	available	for	appropriation	in	

the	SCHOOL	SERVICE	FUND	of	Fruitport	Community	Schools	for	fiscal	year	2025-26	be	adopted	as	follows:

Proposed	Original	Budget

REVENUES:



2024-2025	SCHOOL	SERVICE	FUND	Resolution	for	Adoption	by	the	Board	of	Education	of		Fruitport	Community	

Schools.

Food	Service ECC Tech	Millage Fiduciary	Act.

Fund	Balance	7/1/25

					Committed	fund	balance

Undesignated 507,377$												 482,526$													 928,054$												 711,357$												

507,377$												 482,526$													 928,054$												 711,357$												

									Surplus/Deficit (86,229)$													 (216,990)$											 96,573$														 30,000$														

421,148$												 265,536$													 1,024,627$									 741,357$												

MOTION	by

SUPPORT	by

ROLL	CALL	VOTE:

Motion:

President,	Fruitport	Board	of	Education

Projected	Ending	Fund	Balance											

2025-26

FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	no	Board	of	Education	member	or	employee	of	the	school	district	shall	expend	any	funds	or	obligate	the	expenditure	

of	any	funds	except	pursuant	to	appropriations	made	by	the	Board	of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary	policy	statement	hitherto	

adopted.		Changes	in	the	amount	appropriated	shall	require	approval	by	the	Board.

BE	IT	FURTHER	RESOLVED,	that	the	Superintendent	is	hereby	charged	with	general	supervision	of	the	execution	of	the	budget	adopted	by	the	

Board	and	shall	hold	the	department	heads	responsible	for	performance	of	their	responsibilities	within	the	amounts	appropriated	by	the	Board	

of	Education	and	in	keeping	with	the	budgetary	policy	statement	hitherto	adopted	by	the	Board	of	Education.	This	act	is	to	take	effect	on	June		

23,	2025.

Proposed	Original	Budget

Fund	Balance	Information

Total	Beginning	Fund	Balance



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
West Michigan Health Insurance Pool Membership Resolution 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
The district is apart of the West Michigan Health Insurance Pool (WMHIP) as we have our operations, 
affiliated admin, and non-affiliated employees using them for our insurance. Part of the membership is the 
district have two trustees and with some personnel changes, we need to update our information. In the 
attached resolution, the recommendation is to continue to have myself as the trustee and also add Jessica as 
the second trustee.  
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
$0 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the attached resolution from the West Michigan Health Insurance Pool to have Mark Mesbergen 
and Jessica Wiseman as the two trustees for Fruitport Community Schools. Roll Call… 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess       ___ Cole    ___ Hazekamp         ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg          ___ Mueller            ___ Six   
 

 



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
 

Fruitport Community Schools 
(the “Public Entity”) 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PUBLIC ENTITY MEMBERSHIP  

IN THE WEST MICHIGAN HEALTH INSURANCE POOL (“WMHIP”) FOR A MINIMUM 
THREE-YEAR PERIOD 

 
 

PREMISES 

 

 A. The Western Michigan Health Insurance Pool (“WMHIP”) is a Public Employer Pooled Plan 

(“PEPP”) that provides pooled self-funded health insurance coverage, as authorized by the Public 

Employees Health Benefit Act, Act 106 of 2007.  

 

 B. WMHIP has received from the Michigan Department of Insurance and Financial Services 

("DIFS") a certificate of registration authorizing establishment of the PEPP. 

 

 C. The Board has had opportunity to consider the obligations of the Public Entity to WMHIP and 

PEPP plans, and services available to the Public Entity by WMHIP, and has carefully reviewed the 

WMHIP Amended Trust Agreement and Bylaws.  

 

D.  The Board desires to authorize membership of the Public Entity in the WMHIP for a minimum 

period of three years.   

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of the Public Entity hereby resolves: 

 

 1. The Board approves the WMHIP Amended Trust Agreement and bylaws, and accepts WMHIP 

provision of Public Entity self-funded, pooled health insurance coverage under the PEPP plan. 

 

 2. The Superintendent, Manager, or CFO of the Public Entity or, with their approval, the person 

appointed by the Board as WMHIP Trustee or Alternate Trustee, is hereby authorized to execute all 

documents necessary for the Public Entity to become a Member in the WMHIP PEPP plan. 



 

 

 

 3. The Board hereby confirms its appointment of the following persons as Trustee and Alternate 

Trustee to serve as Trustee when the initial Trustee is not available or in attendance to carry out the 

Trustee’s duties: 

 

Director of Business Services 

Mark Mesbergen 

 

Accountant 

Jessica Wiseman 

 

As required by law, neither the Trustee nor the Alternate Trustee is an owner, officer, or employee of 

any third-party administrator or any other third party providing services to WMHIP.  The Trustee and 

Alternate Trustee shall serve until replaced by action of the Board. Once appointments are made known 

to the WMHIP, the persons appointed shall remain in office until the WMHIP receives evidence of 

appointment of other persons. Evidence of proper appointment of the Trustee and Alternate Trustee 

shall be a certified copy of the resolution passed by the Board, indicating the names of the designated 

Trustee and/or Alternate Trustee. Failure of the Public Entity to designate a Trustee, or the failure of 

that Trustee/Alternate Trustee to participate on the Board of Trustees, shall not affect the 

responsibilities or duties of the Public Entity under the Amended Trust Agreement. 

 

 4. The Public Entity shall continue participation in the WMHIP for a minimum of three full years 

under its PEPP plan. 

 

 5. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

Resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

  



 

 

 CERTIFICATE 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of 

_________________________ of the_________________________________________ Public 

Entity, ________________________________________________County(ies), State of Michigan, at 

a ______________ meeting held on _______________, 20___, and that this meeting was conducted 

and public notice of this meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings 

Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of this meeting were kept and 

will be or have been made available as required by this Act. 

 

 I further certify that the following Members were present at this meeting:  

 

_______________________________________________________________ and that the following 

Members were absent ___________________________________________________. 

 

 I further certify that the foregoing resolution was moved by Member __________________ and 

seconded by Member _______________________. 

 

 I further certify that the following Members voted for adoption of the foregoing resolution: 

______________________________________________________________ and that the following 

Members voted against adoption of this resolution: 

_____________________________________________________________________________. 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Secretary 
 

 

 

w:\wdsystem\wddocs\cliedoc\3293\3\01046548.doc 

 



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
2025-26 Chartwells’ Renewal 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
Per contract, what we pay Chartwells for management fees are adjusted annually in accordance with the cpi. 
This year the fees increased by 3.1% which would be an increase to their contract of approximately $12,000. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
The contract renewal will be an increase of $12,000, which is paid out of the Food Service Fund. 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
The 2025-26 Chartwells contract for management services be approved as presented. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess       ___ Cole    ___ Hazekamp         ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg          ___ Mueller            ___ Six   
 

 





Current
SY 2024-2025 

Rate

Flat % Increase per 
Original Contract

New
SY 2025-2026 

Rate

0.0973$      3.1% 0.1000$     

0.1189 meal 3.1 0.1225 meal

120,000.00$     
NA
NA
No

Signed:  
Food Service Management Company Representative

Printed Name/Title

Sponsor Acceptance of Contract Renewal Agreement

Signed:  
Sponsor Representative

Printed Name/Title

Date

*Planned Client Investment refers to any planned dollar amount the FSMC will invest on the sponsor's behalf to improve the food
service program (such as the purchase of large kitchen equipment or improvements to serving lines, etc.).  The sponsor will pay back
that dollar amount to the FSMC over a specified time period as agreed upon by both parties.

 9. Advance Payment dollar amount for the 25-26 school year, if any
10. Guaranteed Return dollar amount for the 25-26 school year, if any
11. Planned Client Investment* dollar amount for the 25-26 school year, if any
12. Has the sponsor and FSMC agreed upon a budget for the 25-26 school year?  (yes or no)

Note:  Company must sign this page prior to initial upload into GEMS/MARS.

By submission of this proposal, the company certifies that, in the event it receives a renewal award under this solicitation, the company 
shall operate in accordance with applicable program laws and regulations.  The company shall not plead misunderstanding or 
deception because of such estimates of quantities, or of the character, location, or other conditions pertaining to the proposal. This 
agreement shall not exceed one year.

Date

Note:  Sponsor does NOT sign this page prior to initial upload into GEMS/MARS.  
Signature is obtained AFTER MDE approval.

 7. At Risk Suppers

 8. Special Milk

 3. Reimbursable Breakfasts

 4. Reimbursable Lunches

 5. A la Carte Meal Equivalents

 1. Management Fee per Meal (breakfast and lunch) and
Meal Equivalent (a la carte)

 2. Administrative Fee per Meal or Month

 6. After School Snacks

Renewal Year (1,  2,  3,  or 4)  

This document contains the rates and fees for the furnishing of food service management for nonprofit food service programs for the 
period beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2026.  The terms and conditions of the original contract are applicable to the 
contract renewal.

The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) for the Midwest Region for December 2024 is 3.1% as released by the 
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. The Equivalent Meal Factor increased from $4.6250 to $4.9700 for SY 2025-2026.

Price Per Meal and Meal Equivalents must be quoted as if no USDA Donated Commodities will be received.

Rates for School Year (SY) 2024-2025 must match what was approved by MDE.  

RATE NEGOTIATIONS ARE NOT ALLOWED FOR THE SY 2025-2026 RENEWAL.

RATES MUST NOT BE ROUNDED UP

Fee Items

7/1/2022Compass Group USA, Inc. by and through its Chartwells Division
Food Service Management Company Name Year of Original Contract

3

Food Service Management Company
Contract Renewal - Rate Agreement Form

(COST REIMBURSABLE CONTRACT) Note:  Do not complete this tab if sponsor has a Fixed Price contract.

Fruitport Community Schools 61080
School Food Authority/Sponsor Name Agreement Number/School District Code

4/16/2025

Amy Shaffer CEO, Chartwells K12



Signed: 
Food Service Management Company Representative

Printed Name/Title

Signed: 
Sponsor Representative

Printed Name/Title

Note:  Sponsor does NOT sign this page prior to initial upload into GEMS/MARS. 
Signature is obtained AFTER MDE approval.

Date

Food Service Management Company Name Year of Original Contract

3

The Food Service Management Company certifies that it will operate in accordance with all applicable State and Federal laws and 
regulations.

This Contract Renewal Agreement, attachments, and the original Contract, with addenda, if any, constitute the entire agreement 
between the School Food Authority (Sponsor) and the Company. The parties shall not execute any additional contractual documents 
pertaining to this Contract, except as permitted by applicable law.

This agreement shall be in effect for one year from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be signed by their duly authorized representative on this 
day and year.

Note:  Company must sign this page prior to initial upload into GEMS/MARS.

Compass Group USA, Inc. by and through its Chartwells Division 7/1/2022

Renewal Year (1,  2,  3,  or 4) 

Date

Food Service Management Company
Contract Renewal - Signature Page

Fruitport Community Schools 61080
School Food Authority/Sponsor Name Agreement Number/School District Code

4/16/2025

Amy Shaffer CEO, Chartwells K12



 AGENDA SECTION: Personnel   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
To: Board of Education            Attachment #: XII-3 
 
From: Jason Kennedy / Mark Mesbergen 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: Non-Affiliated Administrator Wage and Benefit Schedule 

 
 

 
Background Information: The attached document outlines the wage and benefit information, along with 
the salary schedules for the Non-Affiliated Administrators of the District. It is recommended that the Board 
approve the updates to the wage and benefit handbook for the 2025-2026 fiscal year. 

  
 
Financial Impact: The average increase in compensation for an employee during the 2025-2026 fiscal year 
is 6%. The wage and salary schedule has been adjusted by this percentage to align with the comparable 
average raise that each employee group received for the 2025-2026 school year. 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the wage and benefit schedule for the Non-Affiliated Administrators of the District for the 
2025-2026 fiscal year, as discussed. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess ___ Cole ___ Hazekamp ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg     ___ Mueller       ___ Six   
 

 



 
 

 
 

FRUITPORT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
NON-AFFILIATED ADMINISTRATOR 
WAGE AND BENEFIT INFORMATION 

 
 

 

July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2026 
  



 

Table of Contents	
Article I.	 CLASSIFICATIONS ................................... 1	
Article II.	 WORK YEAR ......................................... 2	
Article III.	HOLIDAYS .......................................... 3	
Article IV.	 VACATION .......................................... 4	
Article V.	 AUTHORIZED LEAVES OF ABSENCE ...................... 5	
Article VI.	 Benefits .......................................... 6	
Article VII.	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .......................... 8	
Article VIII.	 COMPENSATION .................................... 8	
 

 
 

APPENDIX 
 
 
APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULE ................................................................................... 10 
APPENDIX B SALARY STEPS ............................................................................................. 11 
 
 



 

 

 
1 

Article I. CLASSIFICATIONS 
 
 

• Central Office Directors 
 

• 12-Month Directors 
 

• 10-Month Directors 
 

 
  



 

 

 
2 

Article II. WORK YEAR 
 

2.1  The following shall be the scheduled paid days including paid holidays per year. 
 
 
* 10-month directors shall work any days that qualifies as a student instructional day per the 
district’s count calendar and/or any staff professional development day that is in person. 
 

Position 
Annual 
Days 

Start/End Dates 
2025/2026 

Central Office Directors  
Director of Business Services Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Director of Curriculum & Assessment Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 

 
12-Month Directors  
Maintenance Director Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Transportation Director Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Early Childhood Director Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Technology Director Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 

 
10-Month Directors*  
Adult Education Director Two weeks before/after 8/04/25 - 6/24/26 

 



 

 

 
3 

Article III. HOLIDAYS 
 

3.1 The following days shall be recognized as holidays with pay for employees that work 12 
months: 

 
• Independence Day (July 4) 
• Labor Day 
• Thanksgiving Day 
• Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas Eve 
• Christmas Day 
• New Year’s Eve 
• New Year’s Day 
• Dr. Martin Luther King Jr Day (if a non-student day) 
• Memorial Day 

 



 

 

 
4 

Article IV. VACATION  
 

4.1 If the Administrator fails to work a full contract year, their vacation days will be subject to 
proration based on contract days actually worked. The following positions shall be granted 
annual vacation days as listed below: 

 
Position: Vacation 

Days: 
Central Office Directors  
Director of Business Services 20 
Director of Curriculum & Assessment 20 

  
12-Month Directors 20 
Maintenance Director 20 
Transportation Director 20 
Early Childhood Director 20 
Technology Director 20 
  
10-Month Directors  
Adult Education Director 0 

 
4.2 Vacation days must be used within the contract year for which they are made available. The 

Superintendent may allow carry of ten (10) vacation days.   
 

4.3 The employee shall schedule use of vacation days in a manner to minimize interference with 
the orderly operation and conduct of District business. All vacation scheduling is subject to 
approval by the Superintendent or designee. 

 
4.4 Request for use of vacation days must be submitted using the Employee Self-Service (ESS) 

application. Requests will be reviewed for approval by the employee’s supervisor.  
 

  



 

 

 
5 

 
Article V. AUTHORIZED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 
 
5.1  Sick Leave 

The Administrator shall be granted 12 days for sick leave. If the Administrator fails to work 
a full contract year, their sick leave will be subject to proration based on contract days 
actually worked. Unused paid leave days shall be cumulative. 

Request for use of vacation days must be submitted using the Employee Self-Service (ESS) 
application. Requests will be reviewed for approval by the employee’s supervisor. 

5.2  Funeral Leave 
The employee shall be entitled to receive up to five (5) days with pay due to death of a 
member of the immediate family, which shall be interpreted to mean current spouse, child, 
parent, grandparent, grandchildren, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-
in-law, son-in-law, step-parent, step-child, or any other member of the family who lives in 
the employee's home. 

5.3  Personal Leave  
The 10-month and 12 month administrators shall be granted 3 days for personal leave. 
Central Office administrators shall be granted 4 days for personal leave. Unused personal 
leave days will be moved to the employee’s sick bank at the end of the fiscal year. If the 
Administrator fails to work a full contract year, their personal leave days will be subject to 
proration based on contract days actually worked. 

Request for use of vacation days must be submitted using the Employee Self-Service (ESS) 
application. Requests will be reviewed for approval by the employee’s supervisor. 

 
5.4  Disability Leave 

In the event of the employee’s mental or physical incapacity to perform the duties of his/her 
office, he/she shall be granted an initial leave of one hundred and twenty (120) calendar 
days for the purpose of recovery. The employee shall first exhaust any accumulated sick 
leave and accrued vacation time, with the balance of the one hundred and twenty (120) 
calendar day period to be unpaid. Health plan premium payments shall be made on behalf 
of the employee during this interval to the extent required by law. Upon using leave under 
this provision, the employee shall furnish medical certification to the Board (or its 
designee) as to the need for the leave. 

A. If the Board (or designee) has reason to doubt the validity of the medical certification 
supplied by the employee, it may require a second opinion, at Board expense. 

B. The employee may request a one hundred and twenty (120) work-day unpaid leave 
extension in the event of his/her physical or mental inability to return to work at the 
expiration of the initial leave interval, as described above, provided that there is a 
verified prognosis that the employee will be able to resume his/her duties at the end of 



 

 

 
6 

the extended leave interval. Medical certification shall be supplied by the employee as 
a condition to any leave extension. Any extensions of leave for this purpose shall be at 
the Board's discretion. 

C. If the employee is unable to or does not resume work at the conclusion of a leave taken 
under this paragraph (or any leave extension), his/her employment and contract may be 
terminated at the Board's option. However, no such termination shall occur where 
restoration after leave is required by the Family and Medical Leave Act. 

D. Before any resumption of duty after an unpaid leave of absence for a serious health 
condition, the employee shall provide to the Board a fitness-for-duty certification from 
the Administrator's health care provider. A second opinion may be required by the 
Board, at its expense, unless the securing of the second opinion is precluded by the 
Family and Medical Leave Act. 

5.5  Worker’s Compensation 
In cases where an injury is determined to be job-related and incurred during the course of 
carrying out the responsibilities of the employee’s employment, the employee may use 
authorized absence leave to make-up the difference between his/her salary and the benefits 
provided under the Michigan Worker's Compensation Act for the duration of the absence.  
In the event the employee exhausts their absence leave to make-up any difference, the 
District will make up the difference until the 90th calendar day is reached. 

 
 

Article VI. BENEFITS 
 
6.1  Upon proper application and acceptance for enrollment by the appropriate insurance 

underwriter, policyholder, or third-party administrator, the Board shall make premium 
payments on behalf of the employee and his/her eligible dependents for the following 
insurance programs or comparable programs pursuant to Article 6.2: 

A.  Health insurance. The Board shall provide a health plan and pay the annual January 
statutory hard cap amount toward insurance premium and deductible subject to PSA 152 
for health insurance effective January 1 of each contract year. 

B.  Dental insurance. The Board shall provide a dental insurance plan and pay the full cost 
of premium. 

C.  Term life insurance.  The Board shall provide Group Life Insurance including AD&D 
with a value of $100,000 for 10-month and 12-month administrators. Central Office 
Administrators shall receive a value of 1.5 times their current salary capped at $200,000.  
The aforementioned benefits will be paid to the employee’s designated beneficiary. 

D.  Vision insurance.  The Board shall provide a vision insurance plan and pay the full cost 
of premium. 

E.  Long Term Disability insurance.  The employee is required to enroll in negotiated long-
term disability and is responsible for 100% of the premium. 



 

 

 
7 

F.  Insurance shall be prorated based upon year worked which includes their Health Savings 
Account. 

G. The Board has the right to allocate responsibility to the employee to pay a portion of the 
premium for the insurance coverages specified above, as may be determined by the 
Board in its sole discretion. Any such contribution, however, shall not be less than the 
amount determined by the Board as necessary to comply with the Publicly Funded 
Health Insurance Contribution Act, MCL 15.561 et seq. The Board will notify the 
employee of the premium amount for which he/she is responsible in excess of the Board 
paid premium contributions. The amount of premium contributions designated by the 
Board as the employee’s responsibility shall be payroll-deducted from the employee's 
compensation. 

 
6.2  Insurance Contracts 

The Board reserves the right to change the identity of the insurance carrier, policyholder, or 
third-party administrator for any of the above coverages, provided that comparable coverage 
(as determined by the Board) is maintained during the term of contract. Additionally, the 
Board reserves the right to self-fund any of the benefits listed in Article 6.1. 
A. The Board shall not be required to remit premiums for any insurance coverages for the 

employee and his/her eligible dependents if enrollment or coverage is denied by the 
insurance underwriter, policyholder, or third-party administrator. 

B. The terms of any contract or policy issued by any insurance company or third-party 
administrator shall be controlling for all matters concerning benefits, eligibility, 
coverage, termination of coverage, and other related matters. 

C. The employee is responsible for assuring completion of all forms and documents needed 
to receive the above-described insurance coverage. 

D. The Board, by remitting the premium payments required to provide the above-described 
insurance coverage(s), shall be relieved from all liability for insurance benefits. 
 

6.3 Cash in lieu of health insurance includes all of the above benefits except health.  Employees 
having health coverage through a spouse/other may opt out of the board paid health 
insurance and receive a cash benefit instead.  The monthly cash amount is $500.00.  This 
amount is divided into equal payments over the first and second pays of each month. 
 

6.4 All Central Office Directors shall receive $7,500 as a non-elective 403b contribution. This 
payment will be made after the employee receives their evaluation for the school year. The 
evaluation has to be at least effective in order to get this payment.  
 

6.5 As of July 1, 2024, the Director of Business Services shall receive a non-elective 403b 
contribution for working at another school district. This section shall continue until the 
partnership ends. The payment shall be equally divided at the end of each quarter.  

 
 



 

 

 
8 

 
Article VII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
7.1 Expenses 

The employee shall be eligible to be reimbursed for district required and approved travel, 
meals, and lodging in accordance with the per-diem expense and reimbursement procedures 
established by the Board. The employee shall be required to present an itemized account of 
his/her reasonable and necessary expenses in accordance with directions of the Board or its 
designee. 

7.2 Inclement Weather  

Whenever weather conditions are such that school will not be conducting regular classroom 
schedules, notice of this decision shall be communicated (ie, radio, television, school 
message) as soon as can reasonably be accomplished.  Unless specifically notified to the 
contrary, employees shall be expected to work, reporting in a safe and timely manner if 
conditions allow.   

7.3 Professional Development 

Subject to prior approval by the Board, the fees or dues for membership in appropriate 
professional organizations shall be paid by the Board. Subject to prior approval by the 
Superintendent, the employee may attend appropriate professional meetings at the local, 
state, and national levels and shall be reimbursed for any related registration fees, tuition, 
travel, lodging, reasonable meal expenses for himself/herself not prepaid by the Board and 
in accordance with Board policy. 
 
 

Article VIII. COMPENSATION 
 
8.1 The employee shall be paid a salary in consideration of his/her performance of the duties 

and responsibilities of the position assigned in conformance with the requirements and 
expectations of the Board and Superintendent and as scheduled by the Superintendent.  All 
compensation will be pro-rated if the employee leaves prior to completion of the contract. 
Appendix A aligns the position with what each salary schedule the employee is allocated to. 
Appendix B shows the steps for each salary schedule.  

A. The annual salary shall be paid in twenty-six (26) equal bi-weekly installments, 
beginning with the commencement of the fiscal/contract year (July 1 - June 30) for 12-
month staff. 10-month staff will have their bi-weekly installments from first pay in 
September through the second pay in August.  

B. The Board retains the right to adjust the employee's annual salary.  

C. Any adjustment in salary made shall be in the form of a written amendment, and when 
executed by the employee and the Board, shall become a part of the employee’s 
individual Contract of Employment. 



 

 

 
9 

D. Unless expressly stated in writing, any such salary adjustment amendment shall not be 
considered a new contract or an extension of the Contract of Employment termination 
date. 

E. Consistent with Section 1250 of the Revised School Code, the employee's job 
performance and job accomplishments as evaluated will be a significant factor in 
determining any adjustment to the employee's compensation. 

8.2 Retirement (Unused Leave) 
Employees that are retiring through the Michigan Retirement system shall, upon retirement 
into MPSERS, receive $112.50 dollars for each unused day of accumulated sick leave. 

8.3 Sick Leave Bank Capacity 

A. When sick leave bank capacity of 100 days is reached, the employee may request an off 
scheduled payment (no retirement) of yearly unused sick leave at a rate of $112.50 per 
day up to a max amount of $1125.00 in December. A written request must be submitted 
to the Superintendent or designee by December 1st of each year. 

B. Employees who may have accumulated sick leave days and who terminate their 
employment, shall not be compensated by unused sick leave days and said unused sick 
leave may not be carried forward in case of subsequent reemployment by this school 
system. 

8.4 Vacation Payout 
Vacation days must be used within the contract year for which they are made available. If 
an employee is going to carry over more than the 10 days, the Superintendent may approve 
the payout of excess vacation days above the 10 that is allowed.  

8.5 Cell Phone Stipend 
The district holds a district cell phone plan for district administrators. The administrators 
shall pay $20 per month plus any cost for the device. If the administrator requests or was 
hired before July 1, 2023, the district will provide a $40 per month stipend for their personal 
cell phone plan.  

8.6 Tuition 

The Board shall provide tuition reimbursement up to $600 in a fiscal year for non-affiliated 
support staff employees having three or more years of continued employment with Fruitport 
Community Schools.  Coursework must relate to the enhancement of the employee’s work 
skills, relate to professional education certification, or courses necessary for the completion 
of a degree program.  Notice of intent to take a course must be submitted prior to registration 
of the class and approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee. 

 

 



 

 

 
10 

Appendix A 
 

Position Salary Schedule 
Director of Business Services S1 

Director of Curriculum & Assessment S1 

Maintenance Director M1 

Transportation Director T1 

Early Childhood Director E1 

Technology Director T6 

Adult Education Director A1 

 
 
For the 2025-26 fiscal year, all employees shall receive a step on their salary schedule.  
 

  



 

 

 
11 

Appendix B 

 
 



 AGENDA SECTION: Personnel   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
To: Board of Education            Attachment #: XII-2 
 
From: Jason Kennedy / Mark Mesbergen 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: Non-Affiliated Support Wage and Benefit Schedule 

 
 

 
Background Information: The attached document outlines the wage and benefit information, along with 
the salary schedules for the Non-Affiliated Support Staff of the District. It is recommended that the Board 
approve the updates to the wage and benefit handbook for the 2025-2026 fiscal year. 

  
 
Financial Impact: The average increase in compensation for an employee during the 2025-2026 fiscal year 
is 6%. The wage and salary schedule has been adjusted by this percentage to align with the comparable 
average raise that each employee group received for the 2025-2026 school year. 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the wage and benefit schedule for the Non-Affiliated Support Staff of the District for the 
2025-2026 fiscal year, as discussed. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess ___ Cole ___ Hazekamp ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg     ___ Mueller       ___ Six   
 

 



 

 
1 

  
 
 

FRUITPORT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
NON-AFFILIATED SUPPORT 

WAGE AND BENEFIT INFORMATION 

 
 

 

July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2026 
  



 

 
2 

Table of Contents	
	
Article I.	 CLASSIFICATIONS ................................... 3	
Article II.	 QUALIFICATIONS .................................... 3	
Article III.	HOLIDAYS .......................................... 4	
Article IV.	 VACATION .......................................... 5	
Article V.	 AUTHORIZED LEAVES OF ABSENCE ...................... 5	
Article VI.	 BENEFITS .......................................... 7	
Article VII.	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .......................... 8	
Article VIII.	 COMPENSATION .................................... 9	
 

 
 

APPENDIX 
 
 
APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULE ................................................................................... 11 
APPENDIX B SALARY SCHEDULE ................................................................................... 12 
 
 
 

 
  



 

 
3 

Article I. CLASSIFICATIONS 
 

2.1  The following shall be the scheduled paid days including paid holidays per year. 
 
 

Position Days Pay Schedule 

Year Round Staff  
Admin Assistant – Central Office Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Accountant Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
District Network Technician Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Lead Technician Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Payroll – Benefits Coordinator Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Bus Mechanic Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 
Transportation Specialist Year Round 7/01/25 - 6/30/26 

 
School Year Staff  
Academic Interventionists School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Truancy Specialist School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Secondary Student Life Advocate, Mentor School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
PTA/COTA/OTA School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Graduate Advocate School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Student Support Specialist Assistant School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Impact Leaders School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Tier 1 PBIS Classroom Coach School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Mental Health Clinician School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Occupational Therapist School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Physical Therapist School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
   
Unclassified   
Noon Aides School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Bus Aides School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Adult Education Teachers School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 
Adult Education Aide School Schedule 8/18/25 - 6/10/26 

 
 
 
 
 

Article II. QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Qualifications will be determined by individual job description and approved by the 
Superintendent or designee.  Step placement on the Salary Schedule will be determined by the 
Superintendent or designee, after consideration of related job experience. 
 
  



 

 
4 

 
 

Article III. HOLIDAYS 
 

3.1 The following designated days shall be recognized as holidays with pay for year round staff 
working a full year (260 days) for a minimum of 20 hours per week shall be granted the 
following holidays: 

 
• Independence Day (July 4) 
• Labor Day 
• Thanksgiving Day 
• Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas Eve 
• Christmas Day 
• New Year’s Eve 
• New Year’s Day 
• Dr. Martin Luther King Jr Day (if a non-student day) 
• Memorial Day 

 
3.2 The following designated days shall be recognized as holidays with pay for all school year 

staff (does not include the unclassified staff) working the academic calendar for a minimum 
of 20 hours per week shall be granted the following holidays: 

 
 

• Labor Day 
• Thanksgiving Day 
• Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas Eve 
• Christmas Day 
• New Year’s Eve 
• New Year’s Day 
• Dr. Martin Luther King Jr Day (if a non-student day) 
• Memorial Day 

 



 

 
5 

Article IV. VACATION  
 

4.1 Year Round Staff who are scheduled for 260 days per year shall receive vacation time. The 
vacation time schedule is as follows: 

 
10 days starting at employment; pro-rated at July 1 
15 days after the completion of five years 
20 days after the completion of ten years 

 
4.2 Vacation days must be used within the contract year for which they are made available. The 

Superintendent may allow carry of ten (10) vacation days.   
 

4.3 The employee shall schedule use of vacation days in a manner to minimize interference with 
the orderly operation and conduct of District business. All vacation scheduling is subject to the 
Supervisor’s approval. 

 
4.4 Request for use of vacation days must be submitted using the Employee Self-Service (ESS) 

application. Requests will be reviewed for approval by the employee’s supervisor.  
 
 

Article V. AUTHORIZED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
 
5.1  Sick Leave 

A. Year round employees shall be allowed sick leave, (for personal illness), at the rate of 
12 days per year. School year employees shall be at the rate of 10 days per year. 
Unclassified employees shall be at the rate of 10 days per year.  
  

B. Employees who have accumulated sick leave due to previous service but who are 
unable to begin a new contract year because of personal illness or personal injury shall 
be allowed to draw upon such sick leave accumulated until it is depleted or until 
resumption of assigned work, whichever occurs sooner. 

 
C. Accumulation of sick leave days shall be without limit. 

 
D. Employees who may have accumulated sick leave days under the provision of this 

Article and who terminate their employment with this school system for reason other 
than retirement shall not be compensated for unused sick leave days and shall not be 
carried forward in the case of subsequent reemployment by this school system.  
However, employees, shall, upon retirement, receive compensation for each unused 
day of accumulated sick leave following Article 8. 

E. The Board reserves the right to consider all sick leave problems extending beyond the 
limitations set forth herein on the merits of each individual case. Any employee whose 
personal illness extends beyond the period compensated under this Article shall be 
granted a leave of absence without pay for such time as is necessary for complete 
recovery, (but not to exceed twelve (12) months). The position shall be declared 
vacant, and the employee terminated if the leave exceeds twelve (12) months. 



 

 
6 

F. An employee may be required to provide a doctor's certificate for an absence of three 
(3) working days or if a pattern of absence is in evidence. 

G. The employee shall request an absence using the designated absence management 
system. The request will be reviewed for approval by the Employee’s supervisor. 

5.2  Funeral Leave 
The employee shall be entitled to receive up to five (5) days with pay due to death of a 
member of the immediate family, which shall be interpreted to mean current spouse, child, 
parent, grandparent, grandchildren, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-
in-law, son-in-law, step-parent, step-child, or any other member of the family who lives in 
the employee's home. 

5.3  Personal Leave  
Year round staff shall be granted 3 days for personal leave. School year staff shall be 
granted 2 days for personal leave. Unused personal leave days will be moved to the 
employee’s sick bank at the end of the fiscal year. If the employee fails to work a full 
contract year, their personal leave days will be subject to proration based on contract days 
actually worked. 

 
5.4  Disability Leave 

In the event of the employee’s mental or physical incapacity to perform the duties of his/her 
office, he/she shall be granted an initial leave of one hundred and twenty (120) calendar 
days for the purpose of recovery. The employee shall first exhaust any accumulated sick 
leave and accrued vacation time, with the balance of the one hundred and twenty (120) 
calendar day period to be unpaid. Health plan premium payments shall be made on behalf 
of the employee during this interval to the extent required by law. Upon using leave under 
this provision, the employee shall furnish medical certification to the Board (or its 
designee) as to the need for the leave. 

A. If the Board (or designee) has reason to doubt the validity of the medical certification 
supplied by the employee, it may require a second opinion, at Board expense. 

B. The employee may request a one hundred and twenty (120) work-day unpaid leave 
extension in the event of his/her physical or mental inability to return to work at the 
expiration of the initial leave interval, as described above, provided that there is a 
verified prognosis that the employee will be able to resume his/her duties at the end of 
the extended leave interval. Medical certification shall be supplied by the employee as 
a condition to any leave extension. Any extensions of leave for this purpose shall be at 
the Board's discretion. 

C. If the employee is unable to or does not resume work at the conclusion of a leave taken 
under this paragraph (or any leave extension), his/her employment and contract may be 
terminated at the Board's option. However, no such termination shall occur where 
restoration after leave is required by the Family and Medical Leave Act. 



 

 
7 

D. Before any resumption of duty after an unpaid leave of absence for a serious health 
condition, the employee shall provide to the Board a fitness-for-duty certification from 
the Administrator's health care provider. A second opinion may be required by the 
Board, at its expense, unless the securing of the second opinion is precluded by the 
Family and Medical Leave Act. 

 
5.5  Worker’s Compensation 

In cases where an injury is determined to be job-related and incurred during the course of 
carrying out the responsibilities of the employee’s employment, the employee may use 
authorized absence leave to make-up the difference between his/her salary and the benefits 
provided under the Michigan Worker's Compensation Act for the duration of the absence.  
In the event the employee exhausts their absence leave to make-up any difference, the 
District will make up the difference until the 120th calendar day is reached. 
 

5.6  Parental and Maternity Leaves 
A maternity leave shall be granted and taken by any employee pursuant to the provisions 
of the Sick Leave Article and to the extent required by applicable law.  
 
 

Article VI. BENEFITS 
 
6.1  All year round staff and school year staff shall be offered the appropriate benefits under 

this article. Upon proper application and acceptance for enrollment by the appropriate 
insurance underwriter, policyholder, or third-party administrator, the Board shall make 
premium payments on behalf of the employee and his/her eligible dependents for the 
following insurance programs or comparable programs pursuant to Article 6.3: 

A.  Health insurance. The Board shall provide a health plan and pay the annual January 
statutory hard cap amount toward insurance premium and deductible subject to PSA 152 
for health insurance effective January 1 of each contract year. 

B.  Dental insurance. The Board shall provide a dental insurance plan and pay the full cost 
of premium. 

C.  Term life insurance.  The Board shall provide Group Life Insurance including AD&D 
with a value of $100,000.  The aforementioned benefits will be paid to the employee’s 
designated beneficiary. 

D.  Vision insurance.  The Board shall provide a vision insurance plan and pay the full cost 
of premium. 

E.  Long Term Disability insurance.  The employee is required to enroll in negotiated long-
term disability and is responsible for 100% of the premium. 

F.  Insurance shall be prorated based upon year worked which includes their Health Savings 
Account. 



 

 
8 

G. The Board has the right to allocate responsibility to the employee to pay a portion of the 
premium for the insurance coverages specified above, as may be determined by the 
Board in its sole discretion. Any such contribution, however, shall not be less than the 
amount determined by the Board as necessary to comply with the Publicly Funded 
Health Insurance Contribution Act, MCL 15.561 et seq. The Board will notify the 
employee of the premium amount for which he/she is responsible in excess of the Board 
paid premium contributions. The amount of premium contributions designated by the 
Board as the employee’s responsibility shall be payroll-deducted from the employee's 
compensation. 

6.2 Cash in lieu of health insurance includes all of the above benefits except health.  Employees 
having health coverage through a spouse/other may opt out of the board paid health 
insurance and receive a cash benefit instead.  The monthly cash amount is $500.00.  This 
amount is divided into equal payments over the first and second pays of each month. 
 

6.3 Insurance Contracts 
The Board reserves the right to change the identity of the insurance carrier, policyholder, or 
third-party administrator for any of the above coverages, provided that comparable coverage 
(as determined by the Board) is maintained during the term of contract. Additionally, the 
Board reserves the right to self-fund any of the benefits listed in Article 6.1. 
A. The Board shall not be required to remit premiums for any insurance coverages for the 

employee and his/her eligible dependents if enrollment or coverage is denied by the 
insurance underwriter, policyholder, or third-party administrator. 

B. The terms of any contract or policy issued by any insurance company or third-party 
administrator shall be controlling for all matters concerning benefits, eligibility, 
coverage, termination of coverage, and other related matters. 

C. The employee is responsible for assuring completion of all forms and documents needed 
to receive the above-described insurance coverage. 

D. The Board, by remitting the premium payments required to provide the above-described 
insurance coverage(s), shall be relieved from all liability for insurance benefits. 

 
6.4 As of July 1, 2024, the Accountant shall receive a non-elective 403b contribution for 

working at another school district. This section shall continue until the partnership ends. 
The payment shall be equally divided at the end of each quarter.  

 
 

Article VII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
7.1 Expenses 

The employee shall be eligible to be reimbursed for district required and approved travel, 
meals, and lodging in accordance with the per-diem expense and reimbursement procedures 
established by the Board. The employee shall be required to present an itemized account of 
his/her reasonable and necessary expenses in accordance with directions of the Board or its 
designee. 



 

 
9 

7.2 Inclement Weather  

Whenever weather conditions are such that school will not be conducting regular classroom 
schedules, notice of this decision shall be communicated (ie, radio, television, school 
message) as soon as can reasonably be accomplished.  Unless specifically notified to the 
contrary, year round employees shall be expected to work, reporting in a safe and timely 
manner if conditions allow. School year and unclassified employees shall not be expected to 
work.  

7.3 Professional Development 

Subject to prior approval by the Board, the fees or dues for membership in appropriate 
professional organizations shall be paid by the Board. Subject to prior approval by the 
Superintendent, the employee may attend appropriate professional meetings at the local, 
state, and national levels and shall be reimbursed for any related registration fees, tuition, 
travel, lodging, reasonable meal expenses for himself/herself not prepaid by the Board and 
in accordance with Board policy. 
 
 

Article VIII. COMPENSATION 
 
8.1 The employee shall be paid a salary in consideration of his/her performance of the duties 

and responsibilities of the position assigned in conformance with the requirements and 
expectations of the Board and Superintendent and as scheduled by the Superintendent.  All 
compensation will be pro-rated if the employee leaves prior to completion of the contract. 
Appendix A aligns the position with what each salary schedule the employee is allocated to. 
Appendix B shows the steps for each salary schedule. 

A. For year round employees, the annual salary shall be paid in twenty-six (26) equal bi-
weekly installments, beginning with the commencement of the fiscal/contract year (July 
1 - June 30). School year staff will have their bi-weekly installments from first pay in 
September through the second pay in August.  

a. School year staff may request to have their pay spread over the summer, which 
would be spread based on the above language. If the employees does not want 
that, they will need to fill out a timecard. 

b. Unclassified staff shall fill out timecards for each pay period.  

B. The Board retains the right to adjust the employee's annual salary.   

C. Any adjustment in salary made shall be in the form of a written amendment, and when 
executed by the employee and the Board, shall become a part of the employee’s 
individual Contract of Employment. 

D. Unless expressly stated in writing, any such salary adjustment amendment shall not be 
considered a new contract or an extension of the Contract of Employment termination 
date. 



 

 
10 

 

E. Consistent with Section 1250 of the Revised School Code, the employee's job 
performance and job accomplishments as evaluated will be a significant factor in 
determining any adjustment to the employee's compensation. 

8.2 Retirement (Unused Leave) 
Employees that are retiring through the Michigan Retirement system shall, upon retirement 
into MPSERS, receive $75 dollars for each unused day of accumulated sick leave. 

8.3 Sick Leave Bank Capacity 

A. When sick leave bank capacity of 100 days is reached, the employee may request an off 
scheduled payment (no retirement) of yearly unused sick leave at a rate of $75 per day 
up to a max amount of $750 in December. A written request must be submitted to the 
Superintendent or designee by December 1st of each year. 

B. Employees who may have accumulated sick leave days and who terminate their 
employment, shall not be compensated by unused sick leave days and said unused sick 
leave may not be carried forward in case of subsequent reemployment by this school 
system. 

8.4 Vacation Payout 
Vacation days must be used within the contract year for which they are made available. If 
an employee is going to carry over more than the 10 days, the Superintendent may approve 
the payout of excess vacation days above the 10 that is allowed.  

8.5 Tuition 

The Board shall provide tuition reimbursement up to $600 in a fiscal year for year round 
and school year employees who have three or more years of continued employment with 
Fruitport Community Schools.  Coursework must relate to the enhancement of the 
employee’s work skills, relate to professional education certification, or courses necessary 
for the completion of a degree program.  Notice of intent to take a course must be submitted 
prior to registration of the class and approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee. 

8.6 Cell Phone Stipend 

The district holds a district cell phone plan for certain support staff. The employee shall pay 
$20 per month plus any cost for the device. If the employee requests or was hired before 
July 1, 2023, the district will provide a $40 per month stipend for their personal cell phone 
plan.  

 

  



 

 
11 

Appendix A 
 

Position Salary Schedule 
Admin Assistant – Central Office S2 
Accountant B1 
District Network Technician T7 
Lead Technician T7 
Payroll – Benefits Coordinator B2 
Bus Mechanic T2 
Transportation Specialist T3 
Academic Interventionists C3 
Truancy Specialist C2 
Secondary Student Life Advocate, Mentor C1 
PTA/COTA/OTA S6 
Graduate Advocate C3 
Student Support Specialist Assistant C4 
Occupational Therapist – less than 5 yrs FCS S7 
*Occupational Therapist – more than 5 yrs 
FCS 

S8 

Physical Therapist S9 
Impact Leaders C1 
Tier 1 PBIS Classroom Coach C5 
Mental Health Clinician C6 

 
* Closed Salary Schedule 
 
 
All employees shall receive a step for the 2025-26 fiscal year.  
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
12 

 
 
 



 

 
13 

 



 AGENDA SECTION: Student Affairs   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
To: Board of Education            Attachment #: XIII-2 
 
From: Jason Kennedy 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Overnight Trip Request: Trojan Travelers: New York City 
 

 
 
Background Information: 
The Trojan Travelers and advisor Tammy Ruch have requested that the Board approve their trip request to 
New York City on April 30 – May 3, 2026, or on April 23 – 26, 2026, depending upon availability. The trip 
is open to all sophomores, juniors, and seniors at Fruitport High School. The Trojan Travelers will visit various 
museums and landmarks in and around New York City, and will extend beyond just sightseeing to provide 
hands on learning and personal growth while exploring iconic landmarks and enriching the District’s 
curriculum. An itinerary is provided in the board packet. 
 

  
 
Financial Impact: 
The cost of the trip, including airfare and hotel accommodations is $1,919. The cost is an all-inclusive price. 
The cost of the trip is to be covered by students with multiple scholarship and fundraising opportunities 
planned by the group. 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the overnight trip request by the Trojan Travelers and advisor Tammy Ruch to participate in an 
overnight field trip to New York City and the surrounding area on April 30 - May 3, 2026 or April 23 - 26, 
2026, as discussed. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Burgess             ___ Cole      ___ Hazekamp               ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg      ___ Mueller            ___ Six 

 































 AGENDA SECTION: Student Affairs   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
To: Board of Education            Attachment #: X-4 
 
From: Jason Kennedy 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 

● Rycenga Recreational Park Board Representative 
 

 
 
Background Information: The lease agreement between the District and Spring Lake Township for use of 
the land that the District owns adjacent to Rycenga Park requires the development of a Recreational Park 
Board to oversee the lease agreement. The Park Board is to include two representatives appointed by the 
Fruitport Board of Education. It is recommended that the District’s athletic director and the director of 
operations serve in this capacity on behalf of the Board. 

  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the District’s athletic director and the District’s director of operations to serve as representatives 
of the Board of Education on the Rycenga Recreational Park Board, as discussed. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess ___ Cole ___ Hazekamp ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg     ___ Mueller       ___ Six   
 

 























TRAIL LEGEND

PEDESTRIAN ONLY TRAILS

MULTI-USE TRAILS

WAY FINDING SIGNAGE

0' 100' 200'

PRELIMINARY MASTER PLAN
RYCENGA PARK

SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN
AUGUST 29, 2024

EXISTING CREEK

EXISTING CREEK

PARK MONUMENT SIGN
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PARK SIGN

TO LAKESIDE
TRAIL

PEDESTRIAN
ONLY TRAILS

EXISTING
STORAGE
BUILDING

EXISTING PAVILION

EXISTING
PARKING

8 PICKLEBALL COURTS

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING 360' X 210'  SOCCER
FIELDS TO BE RENOVATED FOR
IMPROVED TURF

EXISTING
PAVILION

HEMLOCK DRIVE

PARK ENTRANCE

EXISTING
BOARDWALK

EXISTING
BOARDWALK

PROPOSED
TRAILHEAD

SMALL 14' X 14'
PAVILION WITH

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

SMALL 14' X 14'
PAVILION

PAVILION AND VIEWING
PATIO WITH DRINKING
FOUNTAIN

DOG PARK WITH
AGILITY COURSE

MULTI USE
SPORTS FIELD

NATURE THEMED
PLAYGROUND WITH
BENCH SEATING AND
DRINKING FOUNTAIN

BIKE SKILLS AREA
WITH SMALL 14' X 14'

PAVILION AND
DRINKING FOUNTAIN

GRAND HAVEN BOARD
OF LIGHT AND POWER

50' EASEMENT

GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT
AND POWER 50'  EASEMENT

EXISTING RESTROOM

MULTI USE TRAILS

OPEN VIEW TO
PICKLEBALL COURTS

MULTI USE TRAILS

ELECTRONIC
ENTRANCE GATE

MULTI USE TRAILS

EXISTING
PAVILIONS



 AGENDA SECTION: General Board Business   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

  
To: Board of Education            Attachment #: X-5 
 
From: Jason Kennedy 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 

● SEPAC Parent Advisory Committee Representative 
 

 
 
Background Information: School districts in Michigan are required by Rule 340.1838 of the Michigan 
Administrative Rules for Special Education (MARSE) to nominate a parent to serve on the intermediate 
school district’s Parent Advisory Committee. The parent must be a resident of the local district and have a 
child who has an IEP. It is recommended that Stephanie Detamore be nominated by the Fruitport 
Community Schools Board of Education to fill the following term on the MAISD SEPAC: 07/2024- 
07/2026. 

  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 
To approve Stephanie Detamore to serve as the parent representative to the Parent Advisory Committee at 
the MAISD, as discussed. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
Vote:   ___ Burgess ___ Cole ___ Hazekamp ___ Kelly 
 
 ___ Meeuwenberg     ___ Mueller       ___ Six   
 

 



Local school districts in Michigan are required in Rule 340.1838 of the Michigan  
 
Administrative Rules for Special Education (MARSE) to nominate a parent to the serve on the  
 
intermediate school district’s Parent Advisory Committee.  The parent must be a resident of the  
 
local district and have a child who has an IEP.   
 
The MARSE lists the responsibilities of the parent advisory committee, which include the  
 
following:  The parent advisory committee shall participate in the development of the  
 
intermediate school district’s plan or any modification of the plan for the delivery of special  
 
education programs and services.  The parent advisory committee may provide advisory input  
 
on any matters that the committee deems appropriate to the improvement of special education  
 
services within the intermediate school district. 
 
The mission of the MAISD’s Special Education Parent Advisory Committee (SEPAC) is to  
 
represent the interests and concerns of students with special needs and their parents.  It also  
 
strives to promote partnerships between parents, students, the local school district and the  
 
MAISD by facilitating communication and cooperation. 
 
It is recommended that Stephanie Detamore be nominated by 
Fruitport Community Schools Board of Education to fill the following 
term on the MAISD SEPAC: 07/2024- 07/2026 
 
 
 
 


	Check if Designee: Off
	Check Box2.0.0: Off
	Check Box2.0.1: Off
	Check Box2.0.2: Off
	JH/MS Name 1 - 6th Grade: Off
	Check Box2.1.0: Off
	Check Box2.1.1: Off
	Check Box2.1.2: Off
	JH/MS Name 2 - 6th Grade: Off
	Check Box2.2.0: Off
	Check Box2.2.1: Off
	Check Box2.2.2: Off
	JH/MS Name 3 - 6th Grade: Off


